City Council meeting
Agenda of business
June 8, 2020
The Lord's Prayer
Item
no.

Pledge of Allegiance to the flag

A.

Roll call

B.

Approval of minutes of Tuesday, May 26, 2020

C.

Communications, reports, and resolutions
There were no submittals for this meeting.

D.

Proposed ordinances
1. Ordinance No. 2020-77 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance allowing a
moral claim. (First Reading)
2. Ordinance No. 2020-78 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
the proper City official to enter into a federal local let project agreement with
ODOT for the resurfacing and related work on Dresden Road (CR 2) from SR
60 to the Zanesville Corporation Limit. (First Reading)
3. Ordinance No. 2020-79 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance to amend
and revise the zoning map and make permanent zoning in the City of
Zanesville, Ohio as herein provided. (First Reading)
4. Ordinance No. 2020-80 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance by the
Council of the City of Zanesville authorizing the Mayor of the City of
Zanesville to execute all documents required for the purchase of real
property, and declaring an emergency. (Emergency or First Reading)
5. Ordinance No. 2020-81 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance by the
Council of the City of Zanesville authorizing the Mayor of the City of
Zanesville to submit a bid for the purchase of real property and, if the City is
the successful bidder, authorizing the Mayor to enter into a purchase
agreement for the acquisition of sand property, and declaring an emergency.
(Emergency or First Reading)

E.

Ordinances for action
6. Ordinance No. 2020-70 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance approving the
agreement to create the City of Zanesville - Perry Township Joint Economic
Development District; and approving a Cooperative Development Agreement.
(Second Reading)
7. Ordinance No. 2020-71 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance repealing
Ordinance 19-96. (Second Reading)
8. Ordinance No. 2020-75 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance repealing
Ordinance No. 18-92, creation of a Downtown Redevelopment District.
(Second Reading)
9. Ordinance No. 2020-76 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
the proper City official to enter into an agreement terminating an amended
Historic Property Investment Agreement in connection with the Zane-Zenith
Downtown Redevelopment District. (Second Reading)

F.

Traffic orders
There were no submittals for this meeting.

G.

Miscellaneous and unfinished business

H.

Private petitions and communications
There were no Non-agenda item petitions filed for this meeting.

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020
PUBLIC HEARING
A Public Hearing was held at 6:15 p.m., Tuesday, May 26th, 2020 in the City of
Zanesville's Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio.
Present at the hearing were Council President Daniel Vincent; Councilmembers Ann
Gildow, Jan Bradshaw, J. Rob Sharrer, Mark Baker, and Todd Ware; Community
Development Director Matthew Schley; IT Personnel Lisa Hittle and Glen Gregor; and
Clerk of Council Susan Culbertson. Also attending by phone were Councilpersons Joey
Osborn and Steven Foreman.
Mr. Vincent called the public hearing to order to hear a request by the City of Zanesville
to amend Chapter 1141.05 Table 15 of the City of Zanesville Codified Ordinances and
turned the meeting over to Matthew Schley.
Matthew Schley: Good evening Council. This is a chapter, and this chapter in particular
concerns with our permitted and conditional uses in our commercial or business
districts. The biggest thing with this is Chapter 1141.05 outlines where you could
perform certain uses and in what zoning districts you are allowed to perform those in.
Every so often it is important that the city review these for accuracy, consistency, and to
allow for new and innovative uses to come to the city and then evaluate where we are
being redundant or outdated in some fashion. These updates are historically done about
every two years. The last two being in 2016 and 2018. This year's update will be done
in two phases. This is the first phase and is actually getting the new uses added in,
consolidating some old ones, removing some ones that are just obsolete. The second
phase will be amending Chapter 1109.01 which is our definitions. I expect you will see
that by September.
Some of the highlights of this, really the big one, there are some big ones in here, and
some of that has to do with restaurants. Currently our code identifies five different
restaurant categories. All with different requirements like live music and alcohol. If you
just have alcohol and no live music you are in a different category or if you have a drive
in. So we consolidated that down to be restaurants and restaurants that serve alcohol.
Make it easy for us to board so we are not sitting there splitting hairs on where a
restaurant is or isn't allowed. Some of the other things we looked into are we added a
few things: Farmers' Markets being one of them. Currently in our code a Farmers'
Market would actually be classified as an open sales lot. We did not feel that was
conducive to what a Farmers' Market really is. So, we added that to the code and made
it conditional across the board. A Farmers' Market they come in, they pay $10 and they
get a Conditional Use Permit and they can operate.
Some things that were removed were hatteries. We don't have any hatteries in the city
of Zanesville any more. We haven't had any requests to have one in a long time. So,
that was removed. Then just some other general cleaning up of code items such as the
split up different types of offices. We felt that a professional office and a business office
are very much the same thing. We combined those. Other than that is it pretty standard
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just cleaning up, fixing typos as there were a lot of typos in this last draft so that is
cleaned up.
The Planning Commission did transmit this to City Council with the recommendation of
approval. The Community Development Committee met on May 18 and during their
meeting and they also recommended to transmit this to Council with the
recommendation of approval. Are there any questions?
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mr. Schley. With that, I don't think there were any concerns that
came up in either of those committees.
Matthew Schley: Not really. The big thing I guess that would have come up is we
separated out group homes from hospitals. In our current code we lumped in group
homes and hospitals and clinics all in one big piece, but the way we defined a group
home is as a non-hospital. So, that would be the only thing that was ever questioned in
the CD Committee. Nothing was brought up in the Planning Commission meeting.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you. Mr. Baker I don't know if there is anything you wanted to add
from committee?
Mr. Baker: Yes, I know this process has to clean up and adding and subtracting various
outdated stipulations in the code to obviously bring them up to date and as I recall from
the CD meeting there wasn't anything particularly controversial, but if you could imagine
a constituent calling in and asking the need for something other than what you have just
mentioned, maybe an eyebrow being raised, what would it be?
Matthew Schley: It might be a donut shop. Here is why. Right now we separated out
donut shops and coffee shops. One is right now is a special use. We don't see why it is.
So I think the question would necessarily be, what did we change that would raise an
eye brow? I think, it would be we looked at this and you changed it and we want to know
why it was ever what it was in the first place. I think those are the questions we would
get. I don't think there is anything in here that a constituent could say wow, that doesn't
make sense. We really tried to be common sense and stream line this process so that
way a constituent doesn't always go in front of the Board of Zoning Appeals. The
majority of things would be administratively approved. Only with special, very high
intense use would be a special use.
Mr. Baker: So, what are you going to do if tomorrow you get to the office and there is an
application for a Hattery?
Matthew Schley: I will absolutely make an administrative interpretation and we will go
from there.
Mr. Vincent: Mr. Sharrer, did you have a question?
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Mr. Sharrer: Yes, have we addressed the Airbnb and some of those type of issues that
are arriving out of the gig economy and that kind of thing, Matt?
Matthew Schley: Some of them, yes. Food trucks obviously and we have added it.
Those have been added to the code. We had already addressed the Airbnb issue. We
called those transient homes. So that was addressed I believe in the 2018 iteration. We
did not change that at all. We felt it was good. In the upcoming next stage, we will be
able to get things like home occupations, we have home occupations but it does need a
lot of work and it needs updating and I think that is where that gig economy will really
kind of flush itself out in that section. Most people who are in that economy; they are not
having office space and doing commercial uses in a commercial district. They want to
do it out of their home. So, we will be looking at that, absolutely in the next phase.
Mr. Sharrer: Thank you.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, thank you. Is there anything else from Council? Do we have anyone
from the public online that has a question that wants to speak for or against this? Is
there anyone on the public line that would like to comment? If you do, please unmute
the phone. Again, is there anyone on the public line that would like to make a comment
for or against this? Okay, is there anything else from Council? This is the last
opportunity. Okay, Mr. Schley, thank you very much. We appreciate all of your hard
work on this and we will call this public hearing to a close.
No testimony for and against was presented. The hearing ended about 6:21 p.m.
Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING -TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020
The Zanesville City Council met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 26,
2020 in the City Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio with some
attending by teleconference.
Mr. Vincent led those present in the Lord's Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance to the
Flag.
The following members of Council answered roll call by phone: Mr. Foreman and Mrs.
Osborn. Mrs. Gentry joined a little late to the meeting.
The following Councilmembers responded in person: Mr. Ware, Miss Bradshaw, Ms.
Gildow, Mr. Sharrer, Mr. Roberts, Mr. Baker, and Mr. Vincent.

Page 3 of 15

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020
Mrs. Gentry did not respond during the roll call. Mr. Vincent asked again if Mrs. Gentry
was on the line and to unmute her phone. She still did not respond.
Mr. Vincent: We have Council here. People are watching on the cable access channel,
if you cannot see them, we have Council spread out here, they cannot be seen, but they
are here. With that we have Mrs. Osborn and Mr. Foreman on the phone calling in.
Maybe Mrs. Gentry will join us here shortly.
Mr. Roberts: Do you want a motion to excuse Mrs. Gentry?
Mr. Vincent: Yes, a motion to excuse Mrs. Gentry please.
Mr. Roberts moved to excuse Mrs. Gentry. It was seconded by Mr. Baker. A voice vote
was taken to excuse Mrs. Gentry with all members being in favor. Motion carries and
she stands excused.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Roberts moved to accept the minutes of May 11, 2020 as printed, seconded by Mr.
Ware. A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed.
Motion carries. Mrs. Gentry is recorded as being absent.
Miss Bradshaw moved to accept the Budget Hearing minutes of March 10, 2020 as
written, seconded by Ms. Gildow. A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None
were opposed. Motion carries. Mrs. Gentry is recorded as being absent
Miss Bradshaw moved to accept the Budget Hearing minutes of May 12, 2020 as
written, seconded by Mr. Ware. A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None
were opposed. Motion carries. Mrs. Gentry is recorded as being absent
COMMUNICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RESOLUTIONS
None were submitted for this meeting.
PROPOSED ORDINANCES
Ordinance No. 2020-70 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance approving the
agreement to create the City of Zanesville - Perry Township Joint Economic
Development District; and approving a Cooperative Development Agreement.
Mr. Roberts moved for first reading, seconded by Ms. Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Baker: Could we have a little more information on this as far as the length and how
much the proceeds from this would be.
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Mr. Vincent: I don't know, as far as the agreement? The agreement is in here. I know it
is going to be amended as we don't have water and sewerage out there and it talks
about the City will provide and we are not close out there, so I think it will have to be the
county.
Mr. Baker: Okay, we can wait until the next meeting.
Mr. Vincent: Yes, we will bring it back at our next meeting. Are there any other
questions from Council? We are at first reading so all in favor of first reading signify by
saying aye.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed. Motion carries. Mrs.
Gentry absent.
Ordinance No. 2020-71 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance repealing Ordinance
19-96.
Miss Bradshaw moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Ware
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Baker: Is this the repeal of Mr. Schley's of the ORD?
Mr. Schley: No, it is not.
Mr. Vincent: This has to do with CompuCorp fiber-optic network downtown.
Mr. Baker: Okay, I got it.
Mr. Vincent: This didn't go into effect last year.
Mr. Sharrer: Are we entertaining bringing this back or are we looking to repeal
altogether or are we looking just because the contract wasn't executed?
Mr. Vincent: I think they looked at long term figures and there were some additional
information that Council may not have been aware of as far as on-going costs and
looking to move this money into COVID related technical enhancements for the City that
wouldn't have long term costs involved with them. So the other fiber-optic Wi-Fi was
going to be a full time position to maintain and operate that and then Rhonda or the
Mayor, if you want to add anything here, that would be great.
Mayor Don Mason: I don't know if there is any one listening on a phone. We started
looking at this in January and again as indicated by the President of Council, the Law
Director determined that since this did not take full effect for us in the prior Council term
it would have to be approved by this Council. As we were looking at it administratively
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we opted to go a different direction all together. One that we think won't require us to
hire additional personnel and won't require us to stress our present traffic light crew to
also be doing other wiring. So the bottom line is I think what the President of Council is
looking for is an ordinance to nullify the ordinance that was passed in 2019. Is that
accurate?
Mr. Vincent: I think that is where it has ended up. This is just to repeal as far as the
CompuCorp providing our internet service. Correct? They would be hosting that and the
other part is going to fit in with that so we are going to maintain that system, but it was
going to be our people as far as maintaining the Wi-Fi as I recall. Rhonda, is there
anything you could add to this that would be helpful?
Rhonda Heskett: No. Mayor?
Mr. Sharrer: Yes, Mr. President, I am fine with first reading on this. I know that I was an
initial proponent against this and did some of my own research and talked with our IT
people and did some math and that kind of thing. I have some concerns about repealing
it because of some of the other things that were included in that original legislation. So,
as long as I have an opportunity to speak with the administration and that kind of thing, I
am fine, but I would like to and I will follow up with the administration to make sure that
we go over all of that.
Mr. Vincent: To get more information and more details, yea, I talked to the IT. I talked to
the Mayor.
Mr. Brown: This specific piece of legislation was drafted by the Law Director. So just to
point out the legislation that we are repealing, we would not be able to enact because it
took place last year in 2019 and the contract was not executed in 2019 which really
means that legislation was for the lack of a better term null and void. So this legislation
is just pointing out that that legislation is null and void. If going forward Council would
like to work with the administration, the administration is more than willing to work with
the Council on any and all internet related activities, but this specific piece of legislation
regardless of whether we want to move forward or not would not be effective because it
took place last year and we can't execute a contract based off of last year's legislation
because we entered a new Council term.
Mr. Sharrer: Perfect. Thank you, Mr. Brown.
Mr. Vincent: At this time it is unfortunate that we have not had committee meetings or
an opportunity to discuss all of this. Yes, let's do research and then we will bring it back
and either have a special meeting or have a special committee meeting as we could do
that. If you will just let me know and we will decide from there. If any other
Councilmembers have concerns or want to be involved as far as taking and looking at
this a little closer, we can do that. We are at first reading. Are there any other
questions? Ok, all in favor of first reading, signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay.
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A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed. Motion carries.
Mrs. Gentry was absent.
Ordinance No. 2020-72 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance for the Ohio
Department of Natural Resources Division of Mineral Resource Management regarding
brine solution use.
Mr. Roberts moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving? This is routine and just clearing things
up. Okay, I will have roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
Roll call vote on waiving of the readings.
6 Ayes in person
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
3 Ayes by phone
0 Nays
Motion carries.
Mr. Vincent: Welcome Mrs. Gentry. We have everyone here.
Mr. Baker moved for passage, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Roll call vote for passage.
6 Ayes in person
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
3 Ayes by phone
O Nays
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2020-73 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing the proper
City official to enter into a professional contract with ADR for the preliminary engineering
services for the Muskingum Avenue (Dug Road) Improvement, and declaring an
emergency.
Ms. Gildow moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving? With that we will have roll call vote for
waiving of the readings.
Roll call vote on waiving of the readings.
6 Ayes in person
3 Ayes by phone
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
0 Nays
Motion carries.
Mr. Baker moved for passage, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
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Mayor Mason: I truly appreciate City Council waiving the readings on this. It is such an
urgent project. Roughly from the execution of the contract we believe in a 22 week time
period we can have this design and Dug Road will have good numbers and good
geotechnical information which we then can subsequently go out to bid. As you know
our goal is to unite portions of the south again with West Main with the Putnam area and
then as we get ready for the 1-70 construction this will be a very important thoroughfare
bypass and alternative route for people traveling within the city of Zanesville and even
some of those passing through the city of Zanesville. I really want to thank City Council
in advance.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mayor and before you explained to me as far as what this
provides is so important is the geotechnical information on what we actually have there.
They are doing borings I assume and some other checking to figure out what is there for
the best solutions. It sounds like you have a great company that's got lots of experience
with very similar types of repair work.
Mayor Mason: For those who are watching or listening or want a good summer drive,
and I am not teasing when I say that; an example of the work that the engineering firm
with subcontractor Terracon did is located just south of Duncan Falls on State Route 60.
They cut the hillside back there and it is a good example of the kind of work that I
believe can be done at this location.
Mr. Vincent: The challenge with that position I know the people who own The Barracks
right above that work that was done south of Duncan Falls had concerns as far as
blasting and drilling and what that does to their home as it is very close to the edge of
that. It worked out very well. Troy Balderson was at the state then and got involved with
that. They did a nice job is my understanding and they had some challenges they faced
and they pulled it off, in working with ODOT. Is there anything else from Council?
Roll call vote for passage.
6 Ayes in person
3 Ayes by phone
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
0 Nays
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2020-74- Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the
Wastewater Division to extend sanitary sewer services outside of the corporation limits,
and declaring an emergency.
Ms. Gildow moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Mr. Roberts.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving? With that we will have roll call vote for
waiving of the readings.
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Roll call vote on waiving of the readings.
6 Ayes in person
3 Ayes by phone
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
0 Nays
Motion carries.
Miss Bradshaw moved for passage, seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any further discussion?
Roll call vote for passage.
6 Ayes in person
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
3 Ayes by phone
0 Nays
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.

Ordinance No. 2020-75 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance repealing Ordinance
No. 18-92, creation of a Downtown Redevelopment District.
Mr. Baker moved for first reading, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Baker: This made its way through the Community Development Committee last
week. I believe and we were presented with the reasons why this unfortunately has
become a necessity. Mr. Schley would you like to review some of those?
Matthew Schley: Absolutely. So the biggest issue with how the ORD was originally
created was it actually used the wrong property values. It was based on the appraised
value and not the assessed value of the property. The group that made the original
ORD then used the incorrect figures to create an economic development plan that
dictated how that fund would be distributed or disbursed throughout downtown. What
was discovered was it would take until approximately 2028 for any funding to be
available to any downtown businesses and that is because of the way the economic
plan was written is we require $50,000 in the fund in order to use basically any of that
funding and then the first $20,000 would have to be sent back to the subject property
which in this case was the Zane Zenith building. I do not believe this is the end of the
ORD. I believe this is something we are going to look at going forward, but we can't
create a ORD in that area again until this one goes away and to further that this ORD
has not been certified by the State of Ohio. So, technically at this time it is not collecting
any revenues, it is not collecting anything at all. So, this would just allow us to move
forward to create a ORD that would be beneficial to the downtown area.

Page 9 of 15

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020

Mayor Mason: If I could add in and just to make a couple of bullet points:
1. The ORD was never filed. So it does not exist.
2. The numbers were off by a magnitude of 300%. So, if Council based their
information off of that again, it was poor information.
3. We would not see return on this investment until around year 8 or 9. So, the
Community Development Director is accurate. We are committed to the
downtown and we would like to work with City Council on creating a new
opportunity in that area. A new Downtown ORD, but we have to phase this
out first even though it doesn't really exist, but to phase out an ordinance so
we can create a new one.
Mr. Baker: Mayor, you assured me in the Community Development Committee meeting
as well that whatever the problem was that created those inflated numbers to begin with
is now fixed so it doesn't happen again.
Mayor Mason: I would say the people aren't on staff any more so that has fixed a lot of
it.
Mr. Baker: However, you want to call it; but yea and also Matt didn't you say that seeing
the low proceeds over 30 years or whatever it is for this ORD that the Grahams no
longer were interested in being a part of this as far as the base for the area?
Matthew Schley: That is correct. The Grahams have decided that due to the low
numbers which is obviously opposite of what they were promised and they just decided
it would be better if they pulled out and we could potentially reach an agreement with
them in the future.
Mr. Baker: So, they didn't shut the door that if we actually created a ORD that is going to
generate a significant amount of money that they would be willing to re-enter the
agreement?
Matthew Schley: They seemed interested in looking at it in the future, absolutely.
Mr. Baker: As a good neighbor, okay.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council?
Mr. Baker: By the way, Matt, I am sure you did this already, but in case you didn't you
might want to send them a letter of thanks just for all the effort, time and everything else
they provided and the fact they were willing to step forward to begin with.
Matthew Schley: Absolutely.
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Mr. Vincent: The Grahams have been an excellent partner to this community and a
tremendous investment downtown. Their support of the community has just been
excellent. Okay, so we are at first reading. So, all in favor of first reading, signify by
saying aye.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed. Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2020-76 -Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the proper
City official to enter into an agreement terminating an amended Historic Property
Investment Agreement in connection with the Zane-Zenith Downtown Redevelopment
District.
Mr. Sharrer moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Baker: Matt, this goes with the first one, I assume?
Matthew Schley: Yes, this ordinance goes hand in hand with our previous ordinance. In
order to create a downtown redevelopment district you need a historic anchor property.
This would allow us to terminate that agreement and then we could move forward with a
new one.
Mr. Baker: Thank you.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? We are at first reading so all in favor of
first reading signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed. Motion carries.
ORDINANCES FOR ACTION
Ordinance No. 2020-65 Amended -Introduced by Council -An Ordinance
authorizing the proper city official to purchase a new 2020 FYDA Freightliner Western
Star 4700SB Dump Truck from FYDA Freightliner for the Street Division through the
Ohio Department of Transportation Cooperative Purchasing Program.
Miss Bradshaw moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Sharrer: I would like to add or propose an amendment or double amendment. I
would like to add to the preamble, after the word purchase, "or finance".
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Mr. Vincent: A motion by Mr. Sharrer to amend, for a second time, here in the preamble,
that we missed the last time to add the words in, "or finance" after the word "purchase"
so it will match what our last amendment.
It was seconded by Mr. Roberts.
Mr. Vincent: All in favor of that amendment signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor of the amendment. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Mr. Vincent: We are now at Ordinance No. 2020-65 A as amended for a second time.
We are at third reading.
Mr. Sharrer moved for passage and it was seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any further discussion?
Roll call vote for passage.
6 Ayes in person
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
3 Ayes by phone
0 Nays
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2020-67 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance amending Chapter
1141.05 Table 15 Permitted and Conditional Uses in Business Districts.

Mr. Baker moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? We did have a public hearing on this earlier. There
were no comments for or against. It has been to Community Development and
discussed there. We have covered our bases. If no comments we will have roll call vote
for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
6 Ayes in person
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
3 Ayes by phone
0 Nays
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mr. Schley. We appreciate your efforts on that.
TRAFFIC ORDERS
No traffic Orders were filed for this meeting.
MISCELLANEOUS AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS
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Mayor Mason to provide an update on the City and also the 2020 Census

Mayor Mason: Thank you very much, Mr. President. As everybody knows that we are in
the middle of the Census and the good news is Muskingum County's numbers are
coming in very strong and actually Zanesville is slightly above the last Census as well
as the county this year. Just again, we want to continue to push the message to people.
You should be getting post cards with your code number on them, if you haven't already
gotten that, but please feel out your Census. That is how we get a lot of our federal
monies and other monies based on population.
Mr. Vincent: It is very important to us for grant monies. Is there anything else, Mayor?
Mayor Mason: Not on that.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything about the City that you want to share?
Mayor Mason: I would like to go into executive session to talk about real estate
transactions.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, Mr. Brown do you want to share?
Mr. Scott Brown: I would, thank you, Mr. President. I wanted to update Council starting
from the beginning of the year we started looking at ways to improve our parks and
cemeteries. We spoke with residents and city employees. Somethings that were pointed
out to us pretty quickly was the appearance of our parks and cemeteries and specifically
the playground equipment, the Mausoleums, the Sandstone Arch at Greenwood and
City Hall. So we began working with a local contractor to clean the playground
equipment at several of the parks. We power washed the Mausoleum at Woodlawn, the
Sandstone Arch at Greenwood, and also power washed City Hall.
Additionally, I wanted to commend our various service divisions; specifically the sewer
division. They installed several hundred feet of storm sewer at the Woodlawn Cemetery
and the street division will be coming in and doing a significant amount of paving at the
entrance at the Woodlawn Cemetery. At the beginning of the year you could see a lot of
ponding and that sort of thing and we were able to get all of that water out of there and
improve the overall appearance at Woodlawn.
Again the street division is going to pave about a mile of the bike path starting at Zane's
Landing and heading out toward Riverside Park so residents can expect to see that.
Additionally, we have plans to put in new playground equipment at Goddard Park so
residents will have a chance to see that coming up very soon in the next couple of
months. Then at Riverside also historically there is a lot of drainage issue there. The
sewer division has spent about a month there clearing and grubbing and will start to
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actually work on trying to improve the drainage at Riverside. I just wanted to make
Council aware of all the hard work that all the divisions out there have been doing.
Mr. Vincent: Yes, it sounds like a lot. We are very appreciative of what your crews do.
That is a lot of work. Hopefully, when Riverside Park does flood it will drain out faster. I
know it is a challenge so we do appreciate them. Is there anything else? Ms. Heskett is
there anything? Mr. Schley is there anything else you want to add?
PRIVATE PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
No Non-agenda item petitions were filed for this meeting.
Mr. Sharrer moved to enter executive session to discuss real estate matters. It was
seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: A motion by Mr. Sharrer to go into executive session to discuss real estate
purchases. It was seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Roberts: Just note for the record if the Lear is discussed I will excuse myself from
the session.
Mr. Vincent: So noted, if Lear comes up you will excuse yourself.
Mayor Mason: We can put it last.
Mr. Vincent: We have a motion and a second so with that we need a roll call vote to go
into executive session.
Roll call vote to enter executive session to discuss real estate purchases.
6 Ayes in person
Joey Osborn, Steven Foreman, and Sandy Gentry
3 Ayes by phone
0 Nays
Motion carries.
An Executive Session was entered to discuss purchase of real estate at 7:33 p.m.
Mr. Vincent: We will now go into executive session and with that we will be shutting off
the cameras for those watching on cable access. You won't see or hear us, but we will
turn those back on when we exit from executive session and return to our meeting. We
have nothing else on the agenda and I don't think any action or any votes or anything
will take place after we return, is what I am predicting, but we will be coming back on.
For those listening on the phone, you will be muted so you won't be able to hear us, but
you can stay on the line and we will unmute you when we come back in. So with that we
will shut everything down here.
Mayor Mason: Just let me know when everything is safe, Mr. President.

Page 14 of 15

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020
The cable and phone lines were checked to make sure no public access was available.
Mr. Vincent: With that Council while we are waiting to confirm we are off the air you do
have two pieces of paper in front of you that will help you understand what the Mayor is
going to be sharing with us.
The session began.
Mr. Roberts excused himself at 7:55 p.m. and he returned at the end of the executive
session.
The executive session was concluded at 8: 13 p.m.
Mr. Vincent: We will turn on the TV again and unmute the phones and as soon as we
have that we will begin.
Mr. Foreman reported there is sound and video on the TV. The phones are unmuted.
Mr. Vincent: We have TV and the phones are unmuted.
Mr. Sharrer: Mr. President, I move we adjourn.
Mr. Roberts: Seconded the motion.
Mr. Vincent: All in favor of adjournment signify by saying aye.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed. The motion carries.
Mr. Vincent: I should have mentioned that no voting took place in executive session.
Thank you and have a good evening.
The meeting concluded about 8:14 p.m.

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council
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David J. Tarbert
Law Director

ORDINANCE 2020-77
AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING A MORAL CLAIM

WHEREAS, Mark Vensil presented a legal claim in the amount of Five Hundred
Thirty-Four Dollars ($534.00) against the City of Zanesville; and,
WHEREAS, said claim was reviewed by the Law Director, David J. Tarbert, who
determined that the City of Zanesville was not legally liable for said claim; and
WHEREAS, the basis of said claim is set forth in Exhibit A; and,
WHEREAS, Law Director, David J. Tarbert, advised the claimant that although the
City of Zanesville had no legal liability, he had a right to present a moral claim to City
Council;
WHEREAS, City Council has reviewed the claim and determined that said claim
should be paid as a moral claim.
that:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio,

SECTION ONE: The proper City Official is hereby authorized to pay$ 534.00 to Mark
Vensil and said monies shall be taken from line item
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.
PASSED:
ATTEST:

_________,2020

SUSAN CULBERTSON
Clerk of Council

APPROVED:, ________, 2020

DONALD L. MASON
Mayor

DANIEL M. VINCENT
President of Council
This Legislation Approved As To Form:

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2020-77

· CITY OF ·ZANl;SVILLE

.' DAVID J. TARBERT
LAW PIRECTOR

OFFICE OF THE LAW DIRECTOR

· 401 Market Street;Room 209 • Zanesville, Ohio 43701
.

SCOTT D. EICKELBERGER
EMILY STRANG TARBERT

.· 7,40·6)7·4886 /740-617-4889 • Fax: 740-453-2�35

ASSISTANT LAW DIRECTORS

Email: lawdirector@coz.org

ianuary 3 t 2020

·1
.

...

MarkVensil
· . 560 Brookover Avenue
Zw.esville, Ohfo.43701

RE:

·
.\ .

. . ·, .

Claim No.: . . 19-39

._··]

Dear
. . .Mi. Vensil,
. .. .

my

as

revi�w of the clai.ql you filed against the City of Zanesvi Ile. It is one of my duties Law
. l completed
pirector
to
review
such· claims ·and advise thd City as to wh�ther-or not legal.liability exists: Prior to the
·
.• mid-1980s� governmental entities were generally .immune from all liability. In 1_98�, the Ohio Legislature
enacte�.n�� l�ws.whi_c� st_ill &r�nte� govern ental entitie� �unity .in-inost-m.stances, but di� p�ovide:
·
?ome. bab1hty ma fe"". l_muted s1tuat1ons:. · i · · · ·. ·
· - . .
. .
_.
.- • ·,.
.

Unfortunately, it is my �pin.ion that the claim thirt you.filed does not fall within on� of the �eas'of

. liability created under Chapter 2744. <)fthe O�io,Revised Code.1fierefore, your claim-has. to be denied
. from a 1¢gal �tandpofut However, _City Cpde requires �e to �ubmit alt �ejected .legal claim_s to City
.
. Co4I1cil as·a "�oral-claim." 4. moral claiµi'diffe�s fr-0m _a legal claim in �hat qty Council may decide,
.. �ltho_ugh t):ieCity is not legally liable for the·claim; an ethi� or �oral reason exists to·pay the ·claim.
.
.
.
.
. .'
.
.
:
.
As such, j will draft tqe appropriate 9rd�ance and sub�t it to the Clerk of Council. The ordinan�e w.ill
. . likely io before _Council at;oil.e ofthe next.twp meetings. o"rdinances typically go three re.adings ani,l · ·.
· Council meets every secorid and fou}1h Mopday: You should contact.your City. Councilperson. to discuss
·take," if you thoos_e, to help· advocate your position. Feel free to i::ontact the Clerk of
what' steps .you can
°
Com_icil at (740) 617.:4875_.and she �an help d;irect you fo the appropriate Co1mcilper.son: \ •
_·
"

'

'

'

·If_you have any que�ioils,_ r,iease feel fr�e to ��tact mb:
T�_iy, ·.··..

.·_ · . · =:f§i 6�
· David J. Tarbert
Law Director

DJT:ab

--

· 1·

·_:_ 1 ·

..•

�-

'
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401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740) 617-4910
Email: scott.brown@coz.org

Department of Public Service

Council-Mayor Government
Donald Mason, Mavor

Scott Brown, Interim Director

MEMO
TO: David Tarbert, Law Director
FROM: Scott Brown, Interim Public Service Director
DATE: January 21, 2020
RE: Claim 19-39/Vensil
CC: Scott Bryant, Water Superintendent

Please find attached Claim 19-39/Vensil, along with corresponding information from Scott
Bryant, Water Superintendent.
Should you have any questions, please advise.
SB/am
Attachments
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14 Buckeye Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740) 455-0631

Department of Public Service
Water Division

Council-Mayor Government
Donald L. Mason, Mavor

I

Scott A. Bryant, Superintendent

MEMO
TO:

Scott Brown, Public Service Director

FROM:

Scott A. Bryant, Water Superintendent

DATE:

January 17, 2020

RE:

19-39 Vensil

�---

�

This memo addresses the claim 19-39/Vensil. The property in question is located at 560 Brookover Ave.
Zanesville OH 43701.
In reviewing the claim I find the following:
•

The Call Log indicates a report of a water main break at 3:45 am on 12/3/2019. Excerpts of the
Call Log is attached.

•

Crew member(s) of the Water Division indicated they arrived on site and had the water shutoff
by4:45 am.

•

Crew members performed the necessary emergency repairs and replaced a 12 foot section of 12
inch diameter water line. A picture of the water line is included.

Considering the magnitude of the line break it is likely that water flowed from the street onto the 560
Brookover Ave. property.
Please advise if you have any questions or require additional information.

Al=CEIVED
AN l 7 2020
,, 01 Zanesvillo
,,, Sr'l'Vico Department

I
Date

Time

I

Address

Tuesday12/3/201��3:45am _ 560 Brookover Ave.
12/3/2019
12/3/2019
__E_/3/201912/3/2019

I

I

7:00a
9:12a
9:24a
1:30p

12765 W. Ray Dr.
150 Green St.
1132
-Central Ave.
934 Sevall st.

Phone#
ZPD 0700

Description of Issue
1big break-BOC-call for locates--water down--on hold with
cups for SOmin-J.Spring got through/be running all nightoff
,check for break/water down from N. Ray to Harding/road
closed-water back up & road open
emergency t/off-broke on po-water off
check for break-tf:S_!__ed surface per Mark J.
water off tod.

I
Complete Truck#

X
X
X
X
X

144
129
132
132
143

Who
took call

- I

JWB
MS
MS
MS
MS

0

aE0i"
�
�
�
N
0
N
0
I

-....l
-....l
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401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740) 617-4910
Email: scott.brown@coz.org

Department of Public Service

Council-Mayor Government
Donald Mason, Mayor

Scott Brown, Interim Director

MEMO
TO:
FROM:
DATE:
RE:

�
Scott Bryant, Water Superintendent
/?
Scott Bri�n, Interim Public Service Director .� e..-
January 14, 2020
Claim 19-39/Vensil

CC:

Please find attached Claim 19-39/Vensil, along with corresponding information.
Please attach your remarks to the claim and return.
Should you have any questions, please advise.
SB/am
Attachments
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RECEIVED
AH

FOR CITY CLERK'S USE
19-39
CLAIM NO. ��-DATE REC. / -l3-o2020

4 2

CLERK OF COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF CLAIM AGAINST THE CITY OF
ZANESVILLE, OHIO

MAIL COMPLETED CLAIM TO: CLERK OF COUNCIL, 401 MARKET ST.,
ZANESVILLE, OHIO 43701
l. NAME OF CLAIMANT ---�=----------Mark Vensil
la. ADDRESS IF APPLICABLE IN OWNERSHIP OF DAMAGED
PROPERTY
2.

560 Brookover Avenue, Zanesville, OH 43701

3. TELEPHONENO.
4.

P.O. Box 8122, Zanesville, OH 43702-8122

ADDRESS OF CLAIMANT

(ivg/'6/'i �g:&;--7

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE INCIDENT UPON WHICH CLAIM IS
BASED:
A DATE

;z..b/r

s. TIME

/¾.,-My

C. WEATHER CONDITIONS _______________
D. EXACT LOCATION

6, �t:J5t1.;4'o��J?V

S-,€ o /}£O"�C,v�....

E. NAMES & ADDRESSES OF WITNESSES: IF NONE, SO STATE

.J-✓ ' /11

� ,,,

'r 5

n-o

k(!), Io

t:Y �;,

dv 6,

z,,?e:5'0/�

POLICE
F. WAS THE INCIDENT INVESTIGATED BY THE ZANES
DEPARTMENT OR OTHER CITY DEPARTMENT YES L NO -G. IF ANSWER TO 4-F IS "YES", PLEASE INDICA TE DEPARTMENT THAT
INVESTIGATED AND/OR THE NAME OF ANY CITY EMPLOYEE WHO
MAY HAVE INVESTIGATED SAID OCCURRENCE

VE D

JAN 1 4 2020

City Qf Zanesville
Public SEirrvice Department
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5.

IN YOUR OWN WORDS, STATE IN DETAIL WHAT HAPPENED AND
HOW IT HAPPENED (CONTINUE ON BACK IF NEEDED)

Li fIy 1,{,,-�

z

// 4(/)

,I{ t(

�0

/,"f.D:r,.,,_<r'k 7 CI!,, '-' .>

+v r

6.

'1 (,.C,,t "L-lf

I Jo

q'«

tv 11f-cv

PROPERTYDAMAGEDETAILS
A. AMOUNT OF CLAIM FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE
DO YOU HAVE HOMEOWNER'S INSURANCE

c/ W<?'/4,r(

= "'e 71'
'ff A

Vit->t � .

IS-3 5(

tJ v

J/4 f: Hr r½od7

B. IF MOTOR VEHICLEDAMAGE IS CLAIMED, STATE YEAR, MAKE AND
MODEL OF VEHICLE

OWNERSNAMEAN;�..,11/"/4

-----="----7_,,___L.S---------

STATE WHET
NOT VEHICLE WAS COVERED BY COLLISION
INSURANCE � IF YES, NAME COMPANY AND AGENT

,Aj/d

7.

C. ATTACH ESTIMATES OR RECEIPT(S) OF COST IN CONNECTION
WITH THE ABOVE CLAIM (VEHICLE OR PROPER'I�Y). ESTIMATES
OR RECEIPT(S) MUST BE FILED WITH CLAIM OR CLAIM
CANNOT BE PROCESSED.

'- -------
WHERE ARE YOU EMPLOYED --� c;__--'--.1-�

�

/.,,L�---""'---U+-1---------

HOW LONG EMPLOYED ABOVE __

8.

IF CLAIM IS FOR BODILY INJURY, STATE THE FOLLOWING:

q
....,;t.#;:........::__-.1-/4
:.....:___..!.._________�-

A. NATURE OF INJURY ___

7
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B. WERE YOU HOSPITALIZED-,& IF SO, WHERE �

�#:

AND FOR HOW LONG

C. WERE YOU ATTENDED BY A p�YSiirAN ( IF YES) WHO---...-,,....�-

9.

DO YOU KNOW WHETHER OR NOT THE CITY HAD BEEN NOTTFTED
OF THE CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES CONCERNING ANY STREET
OR SIDEWALK DEFECT WHICH MAY HAVE BEEN INVOLVED IN THE
INCIDENT WHICH GAVE RISE TO YOUR CLAIM PRIOR TO THE TIME OF
OCCURRENCE OF SAID INCIDENT, IF YES GIVE DETAILS:
�4'?r /
THE UNDE�SIGNED
BEING FIRST DULY
CAUTIONED AND SWORN DEPOSES AND SAYS THAT HE OR SHE HAS
READ THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE FOREGOING
STATEMENT OF CLAIM AND THAT THE SAME IS TRUE.

/1;&.,--_./

1

SIGNATURE OF CLAIMANT

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME THIS �---DAy OF

��o

--'�..................-"I------'�

CJ\

CORTNEYADAMS
Nolay Pubic. stale cl Ohio
��Eltplll
08-16-2022

I?>

N0TARYP-

...•
BILLING:
6355 Tanglewood Dr.
Nashport, OH 43830

�.

•

C,

.E

!,

C, •

•

'[S,

.�

s-.

7

-�J

Heating & Cooling

BILL TO NAME
BILL TO ADDRESS
BILL TO Crrl

0
z ...J
- <(
:i:;:;
LL UJ

oz

(740) 624-421 0
DATE
JOB HOME PHONE

STATE

I

ZIP

JOB WORK PHONE
Bill TO PHOf.lE#

J08 NAME

JOB ADDRESS
JOB CITY

STATE
COMPLE[E
0

JOB CODE
FCE MAKE
MODEL

REPAIR CODE

MATERIAL

I
I
INSPECTION CHECK LIST
0 COMPRESSOR

��o

0 SUCTION
PSI
D HEAD
PSI
::l VOLTS
AMPS
0 ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS
D CONTACTS TIGHT & GLEAN
0 OIL LEVEL & CONDITION

ie:�
wf'1z
Ei � u
i1

<.:>

I�

.,_:z' 2.
zW :=>
w:1:i't.:>o
:::s Cl'.) :z :;;
�

��TJ

0 CONDENSER OIL

0 CLEAN COIL & CHK FIN. COND.
OENT---'F LVG

w� w

�:58

<l:-C!I
•·
INSTAU. w
§w�c:i: �
DATE 1,.>CCl'JW <I:
::;;o =? E
CCuj > Z
LU<( a:
-1
Vl
c:J W
- u, en
I�

a

SIN

:=,
0

"Ticket Number
DATE

z�1-

SIN

OTHER
MAKE & MODEL

NO;

I

I

wCJz
w
:5:
::!!
w
w C/l w
a:
C!l
w
(!I z a::

INCOMPLETE
:::l
SIN

01HER
MAKE& MODEL

□

,.,

1-@"c:i:

ZIP

AIC or H.P.
MAKE&MODEL

UJ UJ UJ
a.. 0 a:
w 0..

This Is
vour,INVOICE
,. .
:

0 LEAK

REFRIGERANT RECOVERY

T

TECH

0

0 REFRIGERANT

0 CHARGE

0 FAN AND MOTOR

0 VOLTS
OAMPS ___
0 ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS
0 CONTACTS TIGHT & CLEAN
0 FAN PULLEYS (ADJUST BELTI
:::l CHECK LUB BEARINGS & MOTOR

0 EVAPORATOR COIL

0 ENTDB--'F LVGD8__°F
0 ENT WB F LVG WB--'F

SIN

0 AIR FILTERS

'.J REPLACED

0 CLEANED

PRICE 'l�l}(OUT
PRICE WITH
SERVICE AGREEMENT SERVICE AGREEMEIH

0 CONDENSATE AREAS

WORK PERFORMED

REPAIR DESCRIPTION

'F

0 VISUALLY INSPECT DRAIN LINE

0 HEATING ASSY.

DIAGNOSTICS
INSPECTION
REPAIR
SERVICE
AGREEMENT
SUBTOTAL
OTHER

TOTAL

PAYMENT
TYPE:

!

I

0 BURNER & HEAT EXCHANGER
C) FUEL SUPPLY & PRESSURE
Q PILOT ASSEMBLY
0 FLAME ADJUSTMENT
0 PRIMARY RELAY & FLUE
0 FAN & LIMIT SWITCH OPER.
0 BLOWER ASSEMBLY
0 RVVALVE
0 STRIP HEAT
0 DEFROST CYCLE

UPON INSPECTION OUR TECHNICIAN RECOMMENDS THE FOLLOWING:

Ci ELECTRICAL C0MP'TS

IAnticipated
!Completion Date

:::ICASH
:J CREDIT CARD
C.l CHECK

MCJ

VISA

CHEC'< # or

EXP. DATE

□

I

I

0 RELAYS
0 OVERLOAD

I

I

(UNDER OHIO LAW) YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO AN ESTIMATE IF THE EXPECTED COST OF REPAIRS OR SERVICES Will BE MORE
THAN 1WENTY-FIVE DOLLARS. INITIAL YOUR CHOICE. WRlffiN
1 00 NOT REQUEST
1AN
'ORAL
ESTIMATE
ESTIMATE
ESTIMATE

OISC.W

I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THE SATISFACTORY
COMPLETION OF IBE WORK DESCRIBED ABOVE.

I I I I I I I I [ l I [ I I I 1x

CUSTOMER SIGllATUAE

,.,

0 CONTACTS
J PRESS SWITCH

□ THERMOSTAT

The esfirnated ,vni,,,1 cost cootllned In this pm Posa!� bindi1g for 5 (nvel •= from the dalt conhlined herein.
All naw parts as reco,ded M lac,, of !Ill$ lnWlice '"' warranted for a oeriod of oo, en-°' o, Ill acco,llance w,u, the rnanufacturer·s or o:ner limited warranl,e�
In the ""81'11 lhal you the customer aU\hOrize commencemenl but do not aulhorize completion of a repair Of service, a charge will be imposed lor disassernb,) reassembly.
or partiali'/ comptet,d won<. Such charge will be di'ectly related to the actual amounl ol t,bct or parts im·o!ved in the •�Sflec1ioo. reoair or service
Labo< ls guaranteed for 30 days and apfl(ies only as� relal0$ to spocifro new parts ll(ovlded and the stated servie, performed.
ALL sel\VIC� WORK IS c.o.o. Carr,,ng chatoes on past due amounts are the maximum allowable by law.

s

0

'""I
0..

s·
z

�
N
0
N
0

-...J
1-...J

" .E •
I; � � C� ':;
i,

BILLING:

6355 Tanglewood Dr.
Nashport, OH 43830

/S

-,
s'

�

Heating & Cooling

BILL TO NAME

(740) 624-4210

STATE

ZIP

JOB CITY

STATE

JOB CODE

un, CT�
C0Mt'Lt:,J�

NC or H.P.
MAKE& MODEL

b/N

MAKE& MODEL

I

PRICE WITiiOUT
PRICE WITH
SERVICE AGREEMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT

1
I

•
I

t:i z
w <>
15 � ;;§
'-' > S2

ffi
I I IJ)

SIN

OTHER

I

I

nn,

OTHER
MAKE&MOOEL

REPAIR CODE

INSTAU
DATE

Q
u
��.

MODEL

>��
:!!: ---' c..:,
!;; §: ;'.:
� 0;

I
I

D

0

i3

-

I

I I

REPAIR DESCRIPTION

I
1

TOTAL

PAVMEN'T
"YPE

O COMPRESSOR
:�:

0 CONDENSER OIL

0 REFRIGERANT
O CHARGE

0 LEAK

REFRIGERANT RECOVERY
T

en

I

Q

TECH

I

0 EVAPORATOR COIL
0 AIR

□ CLEANED

FILTERS

::) REPLACED

O CONDENSATE AREAS

WORK PERFORMED

I
1

O FAN AND MOTOR
0 VOLT s
□·
AMPS --.
0 ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS
O CONTACTS TIGHT & CLEAN
0 FAN PULLEYS (ADJUST BELD
O CHECK LUB BEARINGS & MOTOR
0 ENT os __,F LVG OB __,F
0 ENT WB F LVG WB--'F

0 VISUALLY INSPECT DRAIN LINE

0 HEATING ASSY.
0 BURNER & HE T EXCHANGER
0 FUEL SUPPLY A& PRESSURE
0 PILOT ASSEMBLY
. 0 FLAME ADJUSTMENT
0 PRIMARY RELAY & FLUE
0 FAN & LIMIT SWITCH OPEA.
0 BLOWER ASSEMBLY
0 RVVALVE
0 STRIP HEAT
O DEFROST CYCLE

·

j

DIAGNOSTICS
INSPECTION
REPAIR
SERVICE
AGREEMENT
1
SUBTOTAL
OTHER

ioN

O CLEAN COIL & CHK FIN. COND.
aoo__f �
-�

I
I

���

0 VOLTS
AMPS
0 ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS
0 CONTACTS TIGHT & CLEAN
0 OIL LEVEL & CONDITION

6:'.
11:
<.!:l en
;:; ';;j_
ttl
!= E
�

Ticket Number

A
D TEINSPEC�ION CHEC� LIST

J!-!

- �

1

g

I I I�ffi ;g�
i� �

..,nnuN �r
INWMt'ltlt

'i FCE MAKE

0

cn

.

ZIP

MATERIAL

!� �
:e Si �

SILL TO PHO!IU

JOB ADDRESS

I

'7 �
ffi

JOO WORK PHONE

JOB NAME

11

E>

JOB HOME PHONE

I BILL TO CflY

NO:

��
tis�
<'"l
�
w,O �
z

DATE

BILL TO ADDRESS

�o

JI

;1

. . . . ,...

This Is vour.lNVOICE

UPON INSPECTION OUR TECHNICIAN RECOMMENDS THE FOLLOWING:

O ELECTRICAL COMP'TS

I.
,���f�\
�� Da1e

/

/

(UNDER OHIO LAW) YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO AN ESTIMATE IF THE EXPECTED COST OF REPAIRS OR SERVICES WILL BE MORE
THAN TWENlY-FIVE DOLLARS. INITIAL YOUR CHOICE. jWlll!TEN
1 DO NOT REQUEST
ORAt
1AN
I ESTIMATE
ESTIMATE
ESTIMATE
JC�.SH

J CREDIT CARO
JCHECK

MC::l

VISAO

CHECK# or

OISC.0

I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THE SATISFACTORY
COMPLETION OF THE WORK DESCRIBED ABOVE.

EXP. DATE _________

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I l IX

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE

0 RELAYS
0 OVERLOAD

O CONTACTS
Q PRESS SWITCH

O THERMOSTAT

Th• ,sUm,ted prolecl cost contained m thi! prOjl()Sal is blnoing /or S (fl,o) daVS from the dabl contained h•reln.
All lVNI parts as recorned oo taco of this lrwoice are warranted for_a pe_�of om, 11) year orln actor<!ancewllh_t!le_..,nul�_rer'; or o:ller limited warranties.
In lhe evant tllal you lhe customer authorize commerumenl but do not autllOnze compleilon of a repair or ser.,ce. • charge v.;u be imposed fer disassmbiy reassembly.
or part;al!y compteted � 5'lch charge voN be dir«IY related 10 the actual amounl of_labor_l)I_Qil_(tSin•�!_d_in_lhe inspection, rer,air or smice.
labor Is guarante!ld for 30 days and applies ooly as� relales 14 specif,c new pall$ provided al1d lhe staled service J)flformed.
All SERVICf WORK IS c.a.a. CBIT)ing charges on past due amoun� are the ma>lmum allowable� law.
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Attachment to Ordinance No. 2020-77

Public Service Committee
Andrew Roberts, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2020 - 78
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL
TO ENTER INTO A FEDERAL LOCAL LET PROJECT
AGREEMENT WITH ODOT FOR THE RESURFACING AND
RELATED WORK ON DRESDEN ROAD (CR 2) FROM SR 60 TO
THE ZANESVILLE CORPORATION LIMIT.
WHEREAS, the administration is interested in allocating STP grant funding through ODOT for
resurfacing and related work on Dresden Road (CR 2) from SR 60 to the Zanesville corporation limits
per Attachment "A"; and
WHEREAS, ODOT will provide 80% of the total project cost upon approval of this LPA
agreement by City Council.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of
Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The proper city official is hereby authorized to enter into a federal local let
project agreement with ODOT for the resurfacing and related work on Dresden Road (CR 2) from SR
60 to the Zanesville corporation limits.
SECTION TWO: The estimated cost of the project is $359,000.00 with 80% provided as
federal grant through ODOT using STP fund allocations.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

ATTEST:

__________ ,2020

SUSAN CULBERTSON
Clerk of Council

APPROVED: __________,2020

DONALD MASON
Mayor

DANIEL M. VINCENT
President of Council

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED
AS TO FORM
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MUS CR 2 00.00

COUNTY-ROUTE-SECTION

�

PIO NUMBER

AGREEMENT NUMBER

606-631-562
DUNS NUMBER

CFDA 20.205

LPA FEDERAL LOCAL-LET PROJECT AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Ohio, Department of Transportation,
hereinafter referred to as ODOT, 1980 West Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43223 and the City of
Zanesville, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701 hereinafter referred to as the LPA.
1.

PURPOSE

1. 1

The National Transportation Act has made available certain Federal funding for use by local public
agencies. The Federal Highway Administration (hereinafter referred to as FHWA) designated
ODOT as the agency in Ohio to administer FHWA's Federal funding programs.

1.2

Section 5501.03 (D) of the Ohio Revised Code (hereinafter referred to as ORC) provides that
ODOT may coordinate its activities and enter into contracts with other appropriate public authorities
to administer the design, qualification of bidders, competitive bid letting, construction, inspection,
and acceptance of any projects administered by ODOT, provided the administration of such
projects is performed in accordance with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations with
oversight by ODOT.

1.3

The resurfacing and related work on Dresden Road (CR 2) from SR 60 to the Zanesville Corp Limit
(0.00 to 1.04) (hereinafter referred to as the PROJECT) is a transportation activity eligible to receive
Federal funding, and which is further defined in the PROJECT scope.

1.4

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth requirements associated with the Federal funds
available for the PROJECT and to establish the responsibilities for the local administration of the
PROJECT.

2.

LEGAL REFERENCES AND COMPLIANCE

2.1

This Agreement is authorized and/or governed by the following statutes and/or policies, which are
incorporated, by reference, in their entirety:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

National Transportation Act, Title 23, U.S.C.; 23 CFR 635.105;
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA);
2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards;
ODOT Locally Administered Transportation Projects, Manual of Procedures; and
State of Ohio Department of Transportation Construction and Material Specifications
Manual {applicable to dates of PROJECT).

2.2

The LPA shall comply with all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, executive orders, and
applicable ODOT manuals and guidelines. This obligation is in addition to compliance with any
law, regulation, or executive order specifically referenced in this Agreement.

3.

FUNDING

3.1

The total cost for the PROJECT is estimated to be $ 359,000.00 as set forth in Attachment 1.
ODOT shall provide to the LPA 80 percent of the eligible costs, up to a maximum of$ 359,000.00
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in Federal funds. This maximum amount reflects the funding limit for the PROJECT set by the
applicable Program Manager. Unless otherwise provided, funds through ODOT shall be applied
only to the eligible costs associated with the actual construction of the transportation project
improvements and construction engineering/inspection activities.
3.2

The LPA shall provide all other financial resources necessary to fully complete the PROJECT,
including all 100 percent Locally-funded work, cost overruns and contractor claims.

4.

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN

4.1

The LPA and ODOT agree that the LPA is qualified to administer this PROJECT and is in full
compliance with all LPA participation requirements.

4.2

The LPA and ODOT agree that the LPA has received funding approval for the PROJECT from the
applicable ODOT Program Manager having responsibility for monitoring such projects using the
Federal funds involved.

4.3

The LPA shall design and construct the PROJECT in accordance with a recognized set of written
design standards. The LPA shall make use of ODOT's Location and Design Manual (L&D), or the
appropriate AASHTO publication. Even though the LPA may use its own standards, ODOT may
require the LPA to use a design based on the L&D Manual for projects that contain a high crash
rate or areas of crash concentrations. Where the LPA has adopted ODOT standards for the
PROJECT, the LPA shall be responsible for ensuring that any ODOT standards used for the
PROJECT are current and/or updated. The LPA shall be responsible for periodically contacting the
ODOT District LPA Coordinator or through the following Internet website for any changes or
updates: www.dot.state.oh.us/drrc/Pages/defauIt.aspx

4.4

The LPA shall either designate an LPA employee, who is a registered professional engineer, to act
as the Project Design Engineer and serve as the LPA's principal representative for attending to
project responsibilities or engage the services of a pre-qualified ODOT consultant, who has been
chosen using a Qualification-Based Selection (QBS) process, as required pursuant to ORC
sections 153.65 through 153.71. The pre-qualified list is available on the ODOT website at:
www .dot.state.oh. us/DIVISIONS/Engineering/CONSULTANT

4.5

If Federal funds are used for a phase of project development and the LPA executes an agreement
with a consultant prior to the receipt of the "Authorization" notification from ODOT, ODOT may
terminate this Agreement and cease all Federal funding commitments.

4.6

ODOT reserves the right to move this PROJECT into a future sale year if the LPA does not adhere
to the established PROJECT schedule, regardless of any funding commitments.

5.

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITIES

5.1

In the administration of this PROJECT, the LPA shall be responsible for conducting any required
public involvement events, for preparing all required documents, reports and other supporting
materials needed for addressing applicable environmental assessment, for clearance
responsibilities for the PROJECT pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act and related
regulations, including the requirements of the National Historic Preservation Act; and for securing
all necessary permits.

5.2

If the LPA does not have the qualified staff to perform any or all of the respective environmental
responsibilities, the LPA shall hire an ODOT Pre-Qualified Consultant through a QBS process. The
pre-qualified list is available on the ODOT web page at www.dot.state.oh.us/CONTRACT. If the
LPA hires a pre-qualified consultant, the LPA shall be responsible for monitoring the consultant's
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activities and ensuring that the consultant is following all Federal and State laws, regulations,
policies, and guidelines.
5.3

ODOT shall be responsible for the review of all environmental documents and reports and shall
complete all needed coordination activities with State and Federal regulatory agencies toward
securing environmental clearance.

5.4

The LPA shall be responsible for assuring compliance with all commitments made as part of the
PROJECT'S environmental clearance and/or permit requirements during the construction of the
PROJECT.

5.5

The LPA shall require its consultant, selected to prepare a final environmental document pursuant
to the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act, to execute a copy of a disclosure
statement specifying that the consultant has no financial or other interest in the outcome of the
PROJECT.

5.6

The LPA shall submit a NOi to Ohio EPA to obtain coverage under the National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) Construction General Permit for all projects where the combined
Contractor and Project Earth Disturbing Activity (EDA) are one acre or more. If the LPA chooses
not to use ODOT's L&D Vol. 2 on Local-Let LPA projects, they may use an alternative post
construction BMP criteria with Ohio EPA approval.

6.

RIGHT OF WAY/ UTILITIES/ RAILROAD COORDINATION

6.1

All right-of-way acquisition activities shall be performed by the LPA in accordance with the Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-646) as amended
by 49 CFR Part 24 (hereinafter referred to as Uniform Act), any related Federal regulations issued
by the FHWA, and State rules, policies and guidelines issued by ODOT.

6.2

If existing and newly-acquired right of way is required for this PROJECT, the LPA shall certify that
the all right of way has been acquired in conformity with Federal and State laws, regulations,
policies, and guidelines. Per ODOT's Office of Real Estate, any LPA staff who perform real estate
functions shall be prequalified. If the LPA does not have the qualified staff to perform any or all of
the respective right of way functions, the LPA shall hire an ODOT Pre-qualified Consultant through
a QBS process. The LPA shall not hire the same consultant to perform both the appraisal and
appraisal review functions. Appraisal review shall be performed by an independent staff or fee
reviewer and shall be hired directly by the LPA. Likewise, a consultant hired to perform right of way
acquisition work is not permitted to perform both the relocation and relocation review functions.
Relocation review shall be performed by an independent staff or fee reviewer.

6.3

If the LPA hires a pre-qualified consultant, the LPA shall be responsible for monitoring the
consultant's activities and ensuring that the consultant is following all Federal and State laws,
regulations, policies, and guidelines.

6.4

All relocation assistance activities shall be performed by the LPA in conformity with Federal and
State laws, including the Uniform Act, and any related Federal regulations issued by the FHWA,
and State rules, policies and guidelines issued by ODOT. The LPA shall not hire a consultant to
perform both the relocation and relocation review functions nor shall the LPA hire a sub-consultant
for relocation and another sub-consultant for relocation review. Relocation review shall be
performed by an independent staff person or independent fee reviewer and shall be hired directly
by the LPA.

6.5

The LPA shall provide the ODOT District Office with its certification that all right of way property
rights necessary for the PROJECT are under the LPA's control, that all right of way has been
cleared of encroachments, and that utility facilities have been appropriately relocated or accounted

Revision Date 3/26/2020

Page 3 of 18

Ordinance 2020-78
Attachment A
for so as not to interfere with project construction activities. ODOT shall make use of the LPA's
Right of Way Certification, as well as evaluate the LPA's and/or consultant's performance of the
project real estate activities under Titles II and Ill of the Uniform Act, and, as appropriate, certify
compliance to the FHWA. The LPA shall be liable to repay to ODOT all of the Federal funds
disbursed to it under this Agreement if the certification of the LPA is found to be in error or otherwise
invalid.
6.6

In the administration of this PROJECT, the LPA agrees to follow all procedures described in the
ODOT Utilities Manual and 23 CFR Part 645. When applicable, the LPA shall enter into a utility
relocation agreement with each utility prior to the letting of construction. No reimbursable
construction costs shall be incurred by the LPA prior to the receipt of the"Authorization to Advertise"
notification from ODOT. If such costs are incurred, ODOT may terminate this Agreement and cease
all Federal funding commitments.

6.7

The LPA shall submit all subsequent modifications to the design of the PROJECT and/or any
disposal of property rights acquired as part of the PROJECT to ODOT and FHWA for approval.

6.8

The LPA shall be responsible for any necessary railroad coordination and agreements. The LPA
shall comply with the provisions of Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations and applicable
chapters of the ORC regarding all activities relating to Railroad-Highway projects.

6.9

Consistent with sections 10.1 and 10.4 of this Agreement, the LPA shall assure that, if any property
acquired for this PROJECT is subsequently sold for less than fair market value, all Title VI
requirements are included in the instrument which transfers the property. Consistent with sections
10.1 and 10.4 of this Agreement, the LPA shall assure that if the LPA grants a permit or license for
the property acquired for this PROJECT that the license or permit require the licensee or permit
holder to adhere to all Title VI requirements.

7.

ADVERTISING, SALE AND AWARD

7.1

The LPA shall not advertise for bids prior to the receipt of the "Authorization to Advertise"
notification from ODOT. Should advertising or work commence prior to the receipt of the
"Authorization to Advertise" notification, ODOT shall immediately terminate this Agreement and
cease all Federal funding commitments.

7.2

Any use of sole source or proprietary bid items must be approved by the applicable ODOT district.
All sole source or proprietary bid items should be brought to the attention of the LPA Coordinator
as soon as possible so as not to cause a delay in the plan package submission process. Bid items
for traffic signal and highway lighting projects must be in conformance with ODOT's Traffic
Engineering Manual.

7.3

Once the LPA receives Federal authorization to advertise, the LPA may begin advertising activities.
Whenever local advertisement requirements differ from Federal advertisement requirements, the
Federal requirements shall prevail. The period between the first legal advertising date and the bid
opening date shall be a minimum of twenty-one (21) calendar days. The LPA shall submit to ODOT
any addendum to be issued during the advertisement period that changes estimates or materials.
ODOT shall review and approve such addendum for project eligibility. All addenda shall be
distributed to all potential bidders prior to opening bids and selling the contracts.

7.4

The LPA must incorporate ODOT's LPA Bid Template in its bid documents. The template includes
Form FHWA-1273, Required Contract Provisions, a set of contract provisions and proposal notices
that are required by regulations promulgated by the FHWA and other Federal agencies, which must
be included in all contracts as well as appropriate subcontracts and purchase orders.
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7.5

The LPA shall require the contractor to be enrolled in, and maintain good standing in, the Ohio
Bureau of Workers' Compensation Drug-Free Safety Program (DFSP), or a similar program
approved by the Bureau of Workers' Compensation, and the LPA must require the same of any of
its subcontractors.

7.6

Only pre-qualified contractors are eligible to submit bids for this PROJECT. Pre-qualification status
must be in effect/current at the time of award. For work types that ODOT does not pre-qualify, the
LPA must still select a qualified contractor. Subcontractors are not subject to the pre-qualification
requirement. In accordance with FHWA Form 1273 Section VII and 23 CFR 635.116, the "prime"
contractor must perform no less than 30 percent of the total original contract price. The 30-percent
prime requirement does not apply to design-build contracts.

7.7

In accordance with ORC Section 153.54, et. seq., the LPA shall require that the selected contractor
provide a performance and payment bond in an amount equal to at least 100 percent of its contract
price as security for the faithful performance of its contract. ODOT shall be named an oblige on any
bond. If the LPA has 100 percent locally-funded work product within this Agreement, the LPA must
allocate the correct percent of the performance and payment bond cost to the 100 percent locally
funded work product.

7.8

Before awarding a contract to the selected contractor, the LPA shall verify that the contractor is not
subject to a finding for recovery under ORC Section 9.24, that the contractor has taken the
appropriate remedial steps required under ORC Section 9.24, or that the contractor otherwise
qualifies under the exceptions to this section. Findings for recovery can be viewed on the Auditor
of State's website at https://ohioauditor.gov/findings.html . If the LPA fails to so verify, ODOT may
immediately terminate this Agreement and release all Federal funding commitments.

7.9

Before awarding a contract to the selected contractor, the LPA shall verify that the contractor is an
active registrant on the Federal System for Award Management (SAM). Pursuant to 48 CFR 9.404,
contractors that have an active exclusion on SAM are excluded from receiving Federal contracts,
certain subcontracts, and certain Federal financial and nonfinancial assistance and benefits. If the
LPA fails to so verify, ODOT may immediately terminate this Agreement and release all federal
funding commitments.

7.10

The LPA is prohibited from imposing any geographical hiring preference on any bidder in the LPA's
bid documents or on any successful contractor in the LPA's award or contract for the construction
of the PROJECT.

7.11

After analyzing all bids for completeness, accuracy, and responsiveness, per ORC 153.12, the LPA
shall approve the award of the contract in accordance with laws and policies governing the LPA
within 60 days after bid opening. Within 45 days of that approval, the LPA shall submit to ODOT
notification of the project award by submitting a bid tabulation, a copy of the ordinance or resolution,
and direct payment information as required in Attachment 2 of this Agreement, if applicable.

8.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

8.1

The LPA shall provide and maintain competent and adequate project management covering the
supervision and inspection of the development and construction of the PROJECT. The LPA shall
bear the responsibility of ensuring that construction conforms to the approved plans, surveys,
profiles, cross sections and material specifications. If a consultant is used for engineering and/or
inspection activities, the LPA must use a QBS process as required pursuant to ORC sections
153.65 through 153.71. Any construction contract administration or engineering costs incurred by
the LPA or their consultant prior to the construction contract award date will not be eligible for
reimbursement under this Agreement.
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8.2

The LPA must maintain a project daily diary that is up-to-date and contains the following
information: all work performed, list of equipment utilized, project personnel and hours worked, pay
quantities, daily weather conditions, special notes and instructions to the contractor, and any
unusual events occurring on or adjacent to the PROJECT. Additionally, the LPA is responsible for
documenting measurements, calculations, material quality, quantity, and basis for payment:
change orders, claims, testing and results, traffic, inspections, plan changes, prevailing wage, EEO
and DBE, if applicable. The LPA is responsible for ensuring all materials incorporated into the
PROJECT comply with ODOT's Construction and Material Specifications and meet the
requirements of Appendix J in the LATP Manual of Procedures.

8.3

The LPA shall certify both the quantity and quality of material used, the quality of the work
performed, and the amount of construction engineering cost, when applicable, incurred by the LPA
for the eligible work on the PROJECT, as well as at the completion of construction. The LPA shall
certify that the construction is in accordance with the approved plans, surveys, profiles, cross
sections and material specifications or approved amendments thereto.

8.4

The Federal-aid Highway Program operates on a reimbursement basis, which requires that costs
actually be incurred and paid before a request is made for reimbursement. The LPA shall review
and/or approve all invoices prior to payment and prior to requesting reimbursement from ODOT for
work performed on the PROJECT. If the LPA is requests reimbursement, it must provide
documentation of payment for the project costs requested. The LPA shall ensure the accuracy of
any invoice in both amount and in relation to the progress made on the PROJECT. The LPA must
submit to ODOT a written request for either current payment or reimbursement of the Federal/State
share of the expenses involved, attaching copies of all source documentation associated with
pending invoices or paid costs. To assure prompt payment, the measurement of quantities and the
recording for payment should be performed on a daily basis as the items of work are completed
and accepted.

8.5

ODOT shall pay, or reimburse, the LPA or, at the request of the LPA and with concurrence of
ODOT, pay directly to the LPA's construction contractor ("Contractor"), the eligible items of expense
in accordance with the cost-sharing provisions of this Agreement. If the LPA requests to have the
Contractor paid directly, Attachment 2 to this Agreement shall be completed and submitted with the
project bid tabulations, and the Contractor shall be required to establish Electronic Funds Transfer
with the State of Ohio. ODOT shall pay the Contractor or reimburse the LPA within thirty (30) days
of receipt of the approved Contractor's invoice from the LPA.

8.6

The LPA shall notify ODOT of the filing of any mechanic's liens against the LPA's Contractor within
three (3) business days of receipt of notice of lien. Failure to so notify ODOT or failure to process
a mechanic's lien in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 1311 of the ORC may result in the
termination of this Agreement. Upon the receipt of notice of a mechanic's lien, ODOT reserves the
right to (1) withhold an amount of money equal to the amount of the lien that may be due and owing
to either the LPA or the Contractor; (2) terminate direct payment to the affected Contractor; or (3)
take both actions, until such time as the lien is resolved.

8.7

Payment or reimbursement to the LPA shall be submitted to:
City of Zanesville
401 Market Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701

8.8

If, for any reason, the LPA contemplates suspending or terminating the contract of the Contractor,
it shall first seek ODOT's written approval. Failure to timely notify ODOT of any contemplated
suspension or termination, or failure to obtain written approval from ODOT prior to suspension or
termination, may result in ODOT terminating this Agreement and ceasing all Federal funding
commitments.
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8.9

If ODOT approves any suspension or termination of the contract, ODOT reserves the right to
amend its funding commitment in paragraph 3.1 and, if necessary, unilaterally modify any other
term of this Agreement in order to preserve its Federal mandate. Upon request, the LPA agrees to
assign all rights, title, and interests in its contract with the Contractor to ODOT to allow ODOT to
direct additional or corrective work, recover damages due to errors or omissions, and to exercise
all other contractual rights and remedies afforded by law or equity.

8.10

Any LPA right, claim, interest, and/or right of action, whether contingent or vested, arising out of,
or related to any contract entered into by the LPA for the work to be performed by the Contractor
on this PROJECT (the Claim), may be subrogated to ODOT, and ODOT shall have all of the LPA's
rights in/to the Claim and against any other person(s) or entity(ies) against which such subrogation
rights may be enforced. The LPA shall immediately notify ODOT in writing of any Claim. The LPA
further authorizes ODOT to sue, compromise, or settle any such Claim. It is the intent of the parties
that ODOT be fully substituted for the LPA and subrogated to all of the LPA's rights to recover
under such Claim(s). The LPA agrees to cooperate with reasonable requests from ODOT for
assistance in pursuing any action on the subrogated Claim including requests for information and/or
documents and/or to testify.

8.11

After completion of the PROJECT, and in accordance with Title 23 United States Code 116 and
applicable provisions of the ORC, the LPA shall maintain the PROJECT to design standards and
provide adequate maintenance activities for the PROJECT, unless otherwise agreed to by ODOT.
The PROJECT must remain under public ownership and authority for 20 years unless otherwise
agreed to by ODOT. If the PROJECT is not being adequately maintained, ODOT shall notify the
LPA of any deficiencies, and if the maintenance deficiencies are not corrected within a reasonable
amount of time, ODOT may determine that the LPA is no longer eligible for future participation in
any Federally-funded programs.

8.12

The LPA must provide the final invoices, and final report (Appendix P located in the Construction
Chapter of the LPA Manual) along with all necessary closeout documentation within 6 months of
the physical completion date of the PROJECT. All costs must be submitted within 6 months of the
established completion date. Failure to submit final invoices along with the necessary closeout
documentation within the 6-month period may result in closeout of the PROJECT and loss of
eligibility of any remaining Federal and or State funds.

9.

CERTIFICATION AND RECAPTURE OF FUNDS

9.1

This Agreement is subject to the determination by ODOT that sufficient funds have been
appropriated by the Ohio General Assembly to the State for the purpose of this Agreement and to
the certification of funds by the Office of Budget and Management, as required by ORC section
126.07. If ODOT determines that sufficient funds have not been appropriated for the purpose of
this Agreement or if the Office of Budget and Management fails to certify the availability of funds,
this Agreement or any renewal thereof will terminate on the date funding expires.

9.2

Unless otherwise directed by ODOT, if for any reason the PROJECT is not completed in its entirety
or to a degree acceptable to ODOT and FHWA, the LPA shall repay to ODOT an amount equal to
the total funds ODOT disbursed on behalf of the PROJECT. In turn, ODOT shall reimburse FHWA
an amount equal to the total sum of Federal dollars it has received for the PROJECT. If the LPA
has not repaid ODOT in full an amount equal to the total funds ODOT disbursed on behalf of the
PROJECT, any funds recovered from the performance and payment bond as required under
section 7.7 shall be used to offset the Federal dollars reimbursed to FHWA.

10.

NONDISCRIMINATION

10.1

In carrying out this Agreement, the LPA shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment because of race, religion, color, sex (including pregnancy, gender identity and
sexual orientation), national origin, ancestry, age, disability as that term is defined in the American
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with Disabilities Act, military status (past, present, or future), or genetic information. The LPA shall
ensure that applicants are hired and that employees are treated during employment without regard
to their race, religion, color, sex (including pregnancy, gender identity and sexual orientation),
national origin, ancestry, age, disability, military status, or genetic information. Such action shall
include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer;
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and
selection for training, including apprenticeship.
10.2

The LPA agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause, and in all
solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it, state that all qualified applicants shall
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, religion, color, sex (including
pregnancy, gender identity and sexual orientation), national origin, ancestry, age, disability, military
status, or genetic information. The LPA shall incorporate this nondiscrimination requirement within
all of its contracts for any of the work on the PROJECT (other than subcontracts for standard
commercial supplies or raw materials) and shall require all of its contractors to incorporate such
requirements in all subcontracts for any part of such project work.

10.3

The LPA shall ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), as defined in 49 CFR Part
26, will have an equal opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts
financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided in conjunction with this Agreement. To
meet this requirement, subcontractors who claim to be DBEs must be certified by ODOT. The LPA
shall require that all contracts and other agreements it enters into for the performance of the
PROJECT contain the following specific language:
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Requirement. DBE participation goals
(subcontracts, materials, supplies) have been set on this PROJECT for those
certified as DBEs pursuant to Title 23, U.S.C. section 140(c) and 49 CFR, Part 26,
and where applicable qualified to bid with ODOT under Chapter 5525 of the ORC.
ODOT shall supply the percentage goal to the LPA upon review of the Engineer's
Estimate. Prior to executing the contract with the contractor, and in order for ODOT
to encumber the Federal/State funds, the contractor must demonstrate compliance
with the DBE Utilization Plan and Good Faith Efforts requirements.
GOOD FAITH EFFORTS (GFEs)

In the event that the DBE contract goal established by ODOT is not met on a
project, the Contractor shall demonstrate that it made adequate good faith efforts
to meet the goal, even though it did not succeed in obtaining enough DBE
participation to do so.
The Contractor shall demonstrate its GFEs by submitting information including but
not limited to the following to the LPA:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

All written quotes received from certified DBE firms;
All written (including email) communications between the Contractor and
DBE firms;
All written solicitations to DBE firms, even if unsuccessful;
Copies of each non-DBE quote when a non-DBE was selected over a DBE
for work on the contract;
Phone logs of communications with DBE firms.

The LPA will send the GFE documentation including their recommendation to ODOT at the
following address:
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Office of Small & Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
The Ohio Department of Transportation
1980 West Broad Street, Mail Stop 3270
Columbus, Ohio 43223
ODOT shall utilize the guidance set forth in 49 CFR §26.53 Appendix A in determining whether the
Contactor has made adequate good faith efforts to meet the goal. ODOT will review the GFE
documentation and the LPA's recommendation and issue a written determination on whether
adequate GFEs have been demonstrated by the Contractor.
The Contractor may request administrative reconsideration within two (2 ) days of being informed
that it did not perform a GFE. The Contractor must make this request in writing to the following
official:
Ohio Department of Transportation
Division of Chief Legal Counsel
1980 West Broad Street, Mail Stop 1500
Columbus, Ohio 43223
The reconsideration official will not have played any role in the original determination that the
Contractor did not document sufficient good faith effort.
As part of this reconsideration, the Contractor will have the opportunity to provide written
documentation or an argument concerning the issue of whether it met the goal or made adequate
good faith efforts to do so. ODOT will send the Contractor a written decision on reconsideration
explaining the basis for finding that the Contractor did or did not meet the goal or make adequate
good faith efforts. The result of the reconsideration process is not administratively appealable.
ODOT may issue sanctions if the Contractor fails to comply with the contract requirements and/or
fails to demonstrate the necessary good faith effort. ODOT may impose any of the following
sanctions:
(a)
(b)
(c)

letter of reprimand;
contract termination; and/or
other remedies available by law including administrative suspension.

Factors to be considered in issuing sanctions include, but are not limited to:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d )

(e)
10.4

the magnitude and the type of offense;
the degree of the Consultant's culpability;
any steps taken to rectify the situation;
the Contractor's record of performance on other projects including, but not limited to:
annual DBE participation over DBE goals;
(1 )
(2)
annual DBE participation on projects without goals;
number of complaints ODOT has received from DBEs regarding the Contractor;
(3)
and,
the number of times the Contractor has been previously sanctioned by ODOT; and,
(4)
Whether the Contractor falsified, misrepresented, or withheld information.

During the performance of this contract, the LPA, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest
agrees as follows:
(a)

Compliance with Regulations: The LPA will comply with the regulations relative to
nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the United States Department of
Transportation (hereinafter "U.S. DOT") Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as
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they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations"),
which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.
In addition, the LPA will comply with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act,
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, FHWA Guidance, and any other Federal, State,
and/or local laws, rules and/or regulations (hereinafter referred to as "ADA/504").
(b)

Nondiscrimination: The LPA, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract,
will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex (including pregnancy,
gender identification and sexual orientation), age, disability, low-income status or limited
English proficiency in the selection and retention of contractors or subcontractors, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The LPA will not participate either
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by section 21.5 of the Regulations,
including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix
B of the Regulations, as well as the ADA/504 regulations.

(c)

Solicitations for Contractors or Subcontractors, including Procurement of Materials
and Equipment: In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by
the LPA for work to be performed under a contract or subcontract, including procurements
of materials or leases of equipment, each potential contractor, subcontractor, or supplier
will be notified by the LPA of the LPA's obligations under this contract and the Regulations
relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex (including
pregnancy, gender identification and sexual orientation), age, disability, low-income status
or limited English proficiency.

{d)

Information and Reports: The LPA will provide all information and reports required by
the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books,
records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by
the STATE or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders
and instructions. Where any information required of the LPA is in the exclusive possession
of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the LPA will so certify to the
STATE or FHWA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the
information.

(e)

Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the LPA's noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the STATE will impose such contract
sanctions as it or FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
(1)
(2)

(f)

withholding of payments to the LPA under the contract until the LPA complies,
and/or
cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions: The LPA will include the provisions of paragraphs 10.4 (a)
through (e) above in every contract or subcontract, including procurements of materials
and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant
thereto. The LPA will take such action with respect to any contractor or subcontractor
procurement as the ST ATE or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions
including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that, in the event the LPA
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a contractor, subcontractor, or
supplier as a result of such direction, the LPA may request the STATE to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the STATE, and, in addition, the LPA may request the
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.
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11.

DATA, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS - PUBLIC USE

11.1

The LPA shall ensure that any designs, specifications, processes, devices or other intellectual
properties specifically devised for the PROJECT by its consultants or contractors performing work
become the property of the LPA, and that when requested, such designs, specifications, processes,
devices or other intellectual properties shall become available to ODOT and FHWA with an
unrestricted right to reproduce, distribute, modify, maintain, and use. The LPA's consultants and
contractors shall not seek or obtain copyrights, patents, or other forms of proprietary protection for
such designs, specifications, processes, devices or other intellectual properties, and in providing
them to the PROJECT, shall relinquish any such protections should they exist.

11.2

The LPA shall not allow its consultants or contractors to utilize within the development of the
PROJECT any copyrighted, patented or similarly protected design, specification, process, device
or other intellectual property unless the consultant or contractor has provided for such use by
suitable legal agreement with the owner of such copyright, patent or similar protection. A consultant
or contractor making use of such protected items for the PROJECT shall indemnify and save
harmless the LPA and any affected third party from any and all claims of infringement on such
protections, including any costs, expenses, and damages which it may be obliged to pay by reason
of infringement, at any time during the prosecution or after the completion of work on the PROJECT.

11.3

In the case of patented pavements or wearing courses where royalties, licensing and proprietary
service charges, exacted or to be exacted by the patentees, are published and certified agreements
are filed with the LPA, guaranteeing to prospective bidders free unrestricted use of all such
proprietary rights and trademarked goods upon payment of such published charges, such patented
pavements or wearing courses may be specifically designated in the proposal and competition
secured upon the item exclusive of the patent or proprietary charges.

12.

TERMINATION: DEFAULT AND BREACH OF CONTRACT

12.1

Neglect or failure of the LPA to comply with any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of this
Agreement, including misrepresentation of fact, may be an event of default, unless such failure or
neglect are the result of natural disasters, strikes, lockouts, acts of public enemies, insurrections,
riots, epidemics, civil disturbances, explosions, orders of any kind of governments of the United
States or State of Ohio or any of their departments or political subdivisions, or any other cause not
reasonably within the LPA's control. If a default has occurred, ODOT may terminate this Agreement
with thirty (30) days written notice, except that if ODOT determines that the default can be
remedied, then ODOT and the LPA shall proceed in accordance with sections 12.2 through 12.4 of
this Agreement.

12.2

If notified by ODOT in writing that it is in violation of any of the terms, conditions, or provisions of
this Agreement, and a default has occurred, the LPA shall have thirty (30) days from the date of
such notification to remedy the default or, if the remedy will take in excess of thirty (30) days to
complete, the LPA shall have thirty (30) days to satisfactorily commence a remedy of the causes
preventing its compliance and curing the default situation. Expiration of the thirty (30) days and
failure by the LPA to remedy, or to satisfactorily commence the remedy of, the default whether
payment of funds has been fully or partially made, shall result in ODOT, at its discretion, declining
to make any further payments to the LPA, or in the termination of this Agreement by ODOT. If this
Agreement is terminated, the LPA may be liable to repay to ODOT all of the Federal funds
disbursed to it under this Agreement.

12.3

The LPA, upon receiving a notice of termination from ODOT for default, shall cease work on the
terminated activities covered under this Agreement. If so requested by ODOT, the LPA shall assign
to ODOT all its rights, title, and interest to any contracts it has with any consultants or contractors.
Otherwise, the LPA shall terminate all contracts and other agreements it has entered into relating
to such covered activities, take all necessary and appropriate steps to limit disbursements and
minimize any remaining costs. At the request of ODOT, the LPA may be required to furnish a report
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describing the status of PROJECT activities as of the date of its receipt of notice of termination,
including results accomplished and other matters as ODOT may require.
12.4

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved by ODOT is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No
delay or omission to exercise any right or option accruing to ODOT upon any default by the LPA
shall impair any such right or option or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right
or option may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient by ODOT.

12.5

This Agreement and obligation of the parties herein may be terminated by either party with thirty
days written notice to the other party. In the event of termination, the LPA shall cease work,
terminate all subcontracts relating to such terminated activities, take all necessary or appropriate
steps to limit disbursements and minimize costs, and furnish all data results, reports, and other
materials describing all work under this contract, including without limitation, results accomplished,
conclusions resulting therefrom, and such other matters as ODOT may require.

12.3.

In the event of termination for convenience, the LPA shall be entitled to compensation, upon
submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to receipt of notice of termination, less
any funds previously paid by or on behalf of ODOT. ODOT shall not be liable for any further claims,
and the claims submitted by the LPA shall not exceed the total amount of consideration stated in
this Agreement. In the event of termination, any payments made by ODOT in which services have
not been rendered by the LPA shall be returned to ODOT.

13.

THIRD PARTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CLAIMS

13.1

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as conferring any legal rights, privileges, or
immunities, or imposing any legal duties or obligations, on any person or persons other than the
parties named in this Agreement, whether such rights, privileges, immunities, duties, or obligations
be regarded as contractual, equitable, or beneficial in nature as to such other person or persons.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating any legal relations between the Director
and any person performing services or supplying any equipment, materials, goods, or supplies for
the PROJECT sufficient to impose upon the Director any of the obligations specified in section
126.30 of the ORC.

13.2

The LPA hereby agrees to accept responsibility for any and all damages or claims for which it is
legally liable arising from the actionable negligence of its officers, employees or agents in the
performance of the LPA's obligations made or agreed to herein.

14.

NOTICE

14.1

Notice under this Agreement shall be directed as follows:
If to the LPA:
Public Service Director
City of Zanesville
401 Market Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701

lf to ODOT:
Andrea Stevenson
ODOT, Office of Local Proqrams
1980 W. Broad St., Mail Stop 3180
Columbus, OH 43223

RAL PROVISIONS
15.1

Recovery of LPA 's allocable project Direct Labor, Fringe Benefits, and/or Indirect Costs:
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To be eligible to recover any costs associated with the LPA's internal labor forces allocable to this
PROJECT, the LPA shall make an appropriate selection below: [LPA official must initial the option
selected.]

IXI

1. No cost recovery of LPA's project direct labor, fringe benefits, or overhead costs.
(A) The LPA does not currently maintain an ODOT approved federally compliant time
tracking system1, and
(B) The LPA does not intend to have a federally compliant time-tracking system
developed, implemented, and approved by ODOT prior to the period of performance of
this PROJECT, and/or
(C) The LPA does not intend to pursue recovery of these project direct labor, fringe
benefits, or overhead costs during the period of performance of this PROJECT
Agreement.
2. Direct labor plus indirect costs calculated using the Federal 10% De Minimis Indirect
Cost Rate. 2
(A) The LPA currently maintains, or intends to develop and implement prior to the period
of performance of this PROJECT, an ODOT approved federally compliant time-tracking
system, and
(B) The LPA does not currently have, and does not intend to negotiate, an ODOT
approved fringe benefits rate prior to the period of performance of this PROJECT.
3. Direct labor, plus fringe benefits costs calculated using the LPA's ODOT approved
Fringe Benefits Rate, plus indirect costs calculated using the Federal 10% De
Minimis Indirect Cost Rate. 3
(A) The LPA currently maintains, or intends to develop and implement prior to the period
of performance of this PROJECT, an ODOT approved federally compliant time-tracking
system, and
(B) The LPA currently has, or intends to negotiate, an ODOT approved fringe benefits rate
prior to the period of performance of this PROJECT.

A "federally compliant time-tracking system" is supported by a system of internal controls and record-keeping that accurately
reflects the work performed; which provides reasonable assurance that the time being charged is accurate, allowable, and
properly allocated; is incorporated in official records such as payroll records; reasonably reflects the employee's total activity;
provides a time or percentage breakdown on all activities, both Federally funded and non-Federally funded for the employee and
complies with the LPA's pre-established accounting practices and procedures.
2

[Also be sure to read footnote# 1) The De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate is 10 percent of modified total direct costs (MTDC) per 2
CFR §200.414. The definition of MTDC is provided in the regulation at 2 CFR §200.68. Any questions regarding the calculation
of MTDC for a specific project should be directed to the Office of Local Programs. Further, regardless of whether the LPA
subrecipient negotiates overhead rates with ODOT or uses the 10-percent de minimis rate, LPAs are required to maintain
Federally-compliant time-tracking systems. Accordingly, LPAs are permitted to bill for labor costs, and then potentially associated
fringe/indirect costs, only if the labor costs are accumulated, tracked, and allocated in accordance with compliant systems. Before
an LPA is eligible to invoice ODOT for and recover the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate on any project, the LPA's time-tracking
system and methods for tracking other project costs must be reviewed and approved by the ODOT Office of External Audits. A
non-Federal entity that elects to charge the de minimis rate must meet the requirements in 2 CFR 200 Appendix VII Section D,
Part 1. paragraph b.

3

[Also be sure to read footnotes # 1 and 2) The fringe benefits rate billed to this project must be determined in accordance with
the Rate Agreement periodically negotiated with and approved by the ODOT Office of External Audits. The fiscal period when
the LPA's direct labor costs are paid will be matched with the ODOT approved rate for that fiscal year to determine which rate is
applicable. Accordingly, the fringe benefits rate applicable to different fiscal years throughout the period of performance of the
project may fluctuate to match changes to the ODOT approved rate.
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4. Direct labor, plus fringe benefits costs calculated using the LPA's ODOT approved
Fringe Benefits Rate, plus indirect costs calculated using the LPA's ODOT approved
Indirect Cost Rate. 4
(A) The LPA currently maintains, or intends to develop and implement prior to the period
of performance of this PROJECT, an ODOT approved federally compliant time-tracking
system, and
(B) The LPA currently has, or intends to negotiate, an ODOT approved fringe benefits rate
prior to the period of performance of this PROJECT, and
(C) Instead of using the Federal 10% De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate, the LPA currently has,
or intends to negotiate, an ODOT approved indirect cost rate prior to the period of
performance of this PROJECT.

For any allocable project labor costs to be eligible for reimbursement with Federal and/or State
funds, the LPA must maintain compliance with all timekeeping requirements specified in 2 CFR
Part 200 and the ODOT LPA Cost Recovery Guidance, including ODOT Questions and Answers
and related supplementary guidance, as applicable. Additionally, if the LPA elects to recover fringe
and/or indirect costs, the LPA shall maintain compliance with Appendix VII of 2 CFR Part 200 and
the LATP Manual of Procedures.
15.2

If the LPA decides to change its indirect cost recovery option, the change shall not become effective
until this Agreement is amended pursuant to section 15.12 below to reflect the indirect cost recovery
option utilized by the LPA on the PROJECT.

15.3

Financial Repo,ting and Audit Requirements: One or more phases of this Agreement include a sub
award of Federal funds to the LPA. Accordingly, the LPA must comply with the financial reporting
and audit requirements of 2 CFR Part 200.
All non-federal entities, including ODOT's LPA sub recipients, that have aggregate federal awards
expenditures from all sources of $750,000 or more in the non-federal entity's fiscal year must have
a Single Audit, or program-specific audit, conducted for that year in accordance with the provisions
of 2 CFR Part 200.
Federal and State funds expended to or on behalf of a sub recipient must be recorded in the
accounting records of the LPA subrecipient. The LPA is responsible for tracking all project
payments throughout the life of the PROJECT in order to ensure an accurate Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) is prepared annually for all Applicable Federal Funds.
Applicable Federal Funds are those that are identified with the various project phases of this
Agreement as a subaward. Applicable Federal Funds include not only those LPA project
expenditures that ODOT subsequently reimburses with Federal funds, but also those Federal funds
project expenditures that are disbursed directly by ODOT upon the request of the LPA.
The LPA must separately identify each ODOT PIO and/or Project and the corresponding
expenditures on its SEFA. LPAs are responsible for ensuring expenditures related to this
PROJECT are reported when the activity related to the Federal award occurs. Further, the LPA
may make this determination consistent with section 2 CFR §200.502 and its established
accounting method to determine expenditures including accrual, modified accrual or cash basis.
When project expenditures are not accurately reported on the SEFA, the LPA may be required to
make corrections to and republish the SEFA to ensure Federal funds are accurately reported in the

4

[Also be sure to read footnote # 1) The fringe benefits and indirect cost rates billed to this project must be determined in
accordance with the Rate Agreement periodically negotiated with and approved by the Office of External Audits. The fiscal period
when the LPA's direct labor costs are paid will be matched with the ODOT approved rates for that fiscal year to determine which
rates are applicable. Accordingly, the rates applicable to different fiscal years throughout the period of performance of the project
may fluctuate to match changes to the ODOT approved rates.
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correct fiscal year. An ODOT request for the restatement of a previously published SEFA will be
coordinated with the Ohio Auditor of State.
15.4

Record Retention: The LPA, when requested at reasonable times and in a reasonable manner,
shall make available to the agents, officers, and auditors of ODOT and the United States
government, its records and financial statements as necessary relating to the LPA's obligations
under this Agreement. All such books, documents, and records shall be kept for a period of at least
three years after FHWA approves the LPA's final Federal voucher for reimbursement of project
expenses. In the event that an audit-related dispute should arise during this retention period, any
such books, documents, and records that are related to the disputed matter shall be preserved for
the term of that dispute. The LPA shall require that all contracts and other agreements it enters into
for the performance of the PROJECT contain the following specific language:
As the LPA, ODOT or the United States government may legitimately request from
time to time, the contractor agrees to make available for inspection and/or
reproduction by the LPA, ODOT or United States government, all records, books,
and documents of every kind and description that relate to this contract.
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall in any way modify the LPA's legal duties and obligations
to maintain and/or retain its records under Ohio public records laws.

15.5

Ohio Ethics Laws: LPA agrees that they are currently in compliance and will continue to adhere
to the requirements of Ohio Ethics law as provided by Section 102.03 and 102.04 of the ORC.

15.6

State Property Drug-Free Workplace Compliance: In accordance with applicable State and Federal
laws, rules, and policy, the LPA shall make a good faith effort to ensure that its employees and its
contractors will not purchase, transfer, use, or possess alcohol or a controlled substance while
working on State property.

15.7

Trade: Pursuant to the federal Export Administration Act and Ohio Revised Code 9.76(B), the LPA
and any contractor or sub-contractor shall warrant that they are not boycotting any jurisdiction with
whom the United States and the State of Ohio can enjoy open trade, including Israel, and will not
do so during the term of this Agreement.
The State of Ohio does not acquire supplies or services that cannot be imported lawfully into the
United States. The LPA certifies that it, its Contractors, subcontractors, and any agent of the
Contractor or its subcontractors, acquire any supplies or services in accordance with all trade
control laws, regulations or orders of the United States, including the prohibited source
regulations set forth in subpart 25.7, Prohibited Sources, of the Federal Acquisition Regulation and
any sanctions administered or enforced by the U.S. Department of Treasury's Office of Foreign
Assets Control. A list of those sanctions by country can be found at
https://www.treasury.gov/resource- center/sanctions/Programs/Pages/Programs.aspx. These
sanctions generally preclude acquiring any supplies or services that originate from sources within,
or that were located in or transported from or through Cuba, Iran, Libya, North Korea, Syria, or the
Crimea region of Ukraine.

15.8

Lobbying: Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying
Disclosure Act of 1995, PL 104-65 (2 U.S.C. §1601, et seq.). LPA agrees that it will not use any
funds for Lobbying, 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier
above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S. C. 1352. Each
tier shall comply with Federal statutory provisions or the extent applicable prohibiting the use of
Federal assistance funds for activities designed to influence congress to a State legislature on
legislation or appropriations, except through proper official channels. Each tier shall also disclose
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the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying
contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award
covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.
15.9

Debarment. LPA represents and warrants that it is not debarred from consideration for contract
awards by the Director of the Department of Administrative Services, pursuant to either R. C. 153.02
or R.C. 125.25 or by the Federal Government pursuant to 2 CFR Part 1200 and 2 CFR Part 180.

15.10

Governing Law: This Agreement and any claims arising out of this Agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the State of Ohio. Any provision of this Agreement prohibited by the laws of Ohio
shall be deemed void and of no effect. Any litigation arising out of or relating in any way to this
Agreement or the performance thereunder shall be brought only in the courts of Ohio, and the LPA
hereby irrevocably consents to such jurisdiction. To the extent that ODOT is a party to any litigation
arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement or the performance thereunder, such an
action shall be brought only in a court of competent jurisdiction in Franklin County, Ohio.

15.11 Assignment: Neither this Agreement nor any rights, duties, or obligations described herein shall
be assigned by either party hereto without the prior express written consent of the other party.
15.12

Merger and Modification: This Agreement and its attachments constitute the entire Agreement
between the parties. All prior discussions and understandings between the parties are superseded
by this Agreement. Unless otherwise noted herein, this Agreement shall not be altered, modified,
or amended except by a written agreement signed by both parties hereto.

15.13

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity or the ability to enforce the
remainder of this Agreement. All provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable.

15.14

Signatures: Any person executing this Agreement in a representative capacity hereby represents
that he/she has been duly authorized by his/her principal to execute this Agreement on such
principal's behalf.

15.15

Facsimile Signatures: Any party hereto may deliver a copy of its counterpart signature page to this
Agreement via fax or e-mail. Each party hereto shall be entitled to rely upon a facsimile or electronic
signature on any other party delivered in such a manner as if such signature were an original.

The parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the day and year last written
below.

LPA: City of Zanesville

STATE OF OHIO
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By:

By:

Scott Brown
Title: Public Service Director

Jack Marchbanks
Director

Date:

Date:
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Attachment 1

PROJECT BUDGET - SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
SOURCES

STATE FUNDS

FHWA FUNDS

LPA FUNDS

TOTAL

USES
%

%

SAC

Amount

%

SAC

$70,000.00 20

LNTP

$280,000.00

80

4TA7

$300,000.00

$1,800.00 20

LNTP

$7,200.00

80

4TA7

$9,000.00

Amount

Amount

SAC

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT
FINAL DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION
PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS
ACQUISITION OF RIGHT OF WAY &
UTILITY RELOCATION
PROJECT CONSTRUCTION COSTS
INSPECTION

TOTALS
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MUS CR 2 00.00
COUNTY-ROUTE-SECTION

Attachment 2

PIO NUMBER

AGREEMENT NUMBER

DIRECT PAYMENT OF CONTRACTOR

606-631-562
DUNS NUMBER

At the direction of the LPA and upon approval of ODOT, payments for work performed under the terms of
the Agreement by the LPA's contractor shall be paid directly to the contractor in the pro-rata share of
Federal/State participation. The invoice package shall be prepared by the LPA as previously defined in this
Agreement, and shall indicate that the payment is to be made to the contractor. In addition, the invoice must
state the contractor's name, mailing address and OAKS Vendor ID. Separate invoices shall be submitted
for payments that are to be made to the contractor and those that are to be made to the LPA.
When ODOT uses Federal funds to make payment to the contractor, all such payments are considered to
be expenditures of Federal funds received and also expended by the LPA (sub recipient). Accordingly, the
LPA is responsible for tracking the receipts and payments and reporting the payments Federal (Receipts)
Expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA). An LPA that fails to report these
funds accurately and timely may be required to restate the SEFA to comply with Federal reporting
requirements.
We
(INSERT NAME OF LPA)
request that all payments for the Federal/State share of the
construction costs of this Agreement performed by
be
(CONTRACTOR'S NAME)
(CONTRACTOR'S NAME)
paid directly to
VENDOR Name:
Oaks Vendor ID:
Mailing Address:

Error! Reference source not found.

0000000000

Error! Reference source not found.

Error! Reference source not found.

LPA sic::inature:

LPA Name:
Oaks Vendor ID:
Mailing Address:

Error! Reference source not found.

0000000000

Error! Reference source not found.

Error! Reference source not found.

ODOT
Approval sic::inature:
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Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-79
INTRODUCED BY COUNCrL
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE THE ZONING MAP AND
MAKE PERMANENT ZONING IN THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO
AS HEREIN PROVIDED
WHEREAS, an application has been duly made requesting a zoning district change from 1-1 Industrial to C-4
Highway Commercial; and
WHEREAS, proper notification of the intent of this Council to consider this request to rezone the below
described property was given to abutters within 200 feet of the requested rezoning and in a newspaper of general
circulation; and
WHEREAS, after testimony and discussion the Zanesville Planning Commission recommended to City Council
that the zone change request further identified on Exhibit "A", be approved.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio; that
SECTION ONE: The application for rezone change with respect to the real property hereinafter described and
shown in Exhibit "A" is hereby approved and the zoning with respect to said property is so changed.
SECTION TWO: The Zoning Map of the City of Zanesville, Ohio, and the same is hereby amended and
revised by changing the zoning as follows:
From 1-1 Industrial to C-4 Highway Commercial, situated in the City of Zanesville, County of Muskingum, and
State of Ohio, and bounded and described as follows:
Auditors Parcel #83-25-07-07-000, recorded in Deed Volwne 2541, Page 592 being located in the Muskingum
County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #83-26-03-02-000, recorded in Deed Volume 2538, Page 863 being located in the Muskingum
County Recorder's Office.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect upon the approval of the Mayor and
from and after the earliest period allowed by law.
PASSED: ----------� 2020.
ATTEST:

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED:-----------� 2020.

DON MASON
MAYOR

THIS LEGISLATION
�TOFORM

.

�-;er-

�R·s"oFFICE
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Mayor and Council
ORDINANCE NO. 202G-80
AN ORDINANCE BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS REQUIRED FOR
THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville, by and through Administration and Council, desires to purchase
real estate for the purposes of recreational and tourism usage on West Main Street, Zanesville, Ohio, near
the Y-Bridge;
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville, Ohio, also believes the purchase will ultimately result in blight
elimination, demolition, and neighborhood revitalization, thereby protecting the health, safety and
welfare of our citizens; and
WHEREAS, the real estate is now available for said purposes and a standard purchase agreement
is attached hereto; and
WHEREAS, for the reasons set forth herein, and because the property will be unavailable to the
City within a few weeks at a manageable price, the inability to procure the real property to use as a public
park and outdoor recreation and wellness space at the sales price within the next 30 days will create a
hardship for the health and welfare of the citizens of Zanesville, it is necessary that this Ordinance be
deemed an emergency;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE OR ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION ONE: The Mayor of the City of Zanesville, Ohio, is hereby authorized to enter into a
purchase agreement substantially similar to Exhibit A with Raymond Wilkes to purchase approximately
2.4 acres on West Main Street, Zanesville, Ohio, Parcel Number: 83-28-02-01-000 (further described on
Exhibit B}, for $300,000 for the reasons stated above.
SECTION TWO: Said purchase price shall come from Line Item: 101-7951-53434.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.
SECTION FOUR: For the reasons stated herein, this Ordinance is declared to be an emergency
measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6} or more members of City Council, this
Ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval of the Mayor.
Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.
SECTION FIVE: It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to this legislation were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of
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this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the
public in compliance with all legal requirements, including §121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.
PASSED:
ATTEST:

APPROVED:

____________,2020

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

_____________,2020

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason
Mayor
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REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This Agreement is entered into this __ day of------� 2020, by and between The
City of Zanesville, a municipality of the State of Ohio, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
("Purchaser"), and Raymond Wilkes, 1325 Ellen Drive, Zanesville, Ohio 43701 ("Seller").
WITNESSETH:
In consideration of the mutual promises, representations and agreements herein contained, and
for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged herein, Seller
and Purchaser hereby agree as follows:
1.
Description. Seller agrees to sell and convey and Purchaser agrees to buy, upon the terms
and conditions set forth in this agreement, real Property consisting of approximately 2.405 acres depicted
in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof, including all improvements (collectively the
"Property").
2.
Payment of Purchase Price. Purchaser promises and covenants, subject to the
contingencies set forth herein, to purchase the Property for Three Hundred Thousand Dollars
($300,000.00). The Purchase Price shall be paid in full from Purchaser to Seller at the time of closing.
3.
Title. Purchaser shall conduct an examination of title at its expense. Should such
examination indicate that title is not a good and marketable fee simple title, clear of all liens and
encumbrances, except all legal highways, easements and restrictions of record, then Purchaser shall notify
the Seller of any adverse matter, and Seller shall have thirty (30) days after receiving notice to correct
such matters. Should Seller be unable to correct the same, the Purchaser may take any one or more of
the following actions by written notice to Seller:
a.

Waive such defect and proceed with the transaction;

Give additional time to correct such matter, in which case the contingency period set forth
b.
herein shall be extended in accordance with the additional time given, and provided that the giving of
additional time does not constitute the waiver of any applicable contingency; or
c.

Terminate this agreement.

Marketability of title shall be determined in accordance with the Ohio State Bar Association's
Standards of Title Examination. Upon closing, Seller shall execute and deliver to Purchaser an affidavit
certifying that:
(1)
There are no rights of possession, use or otherwise, outstanding in third parties
by reason of unrecorded leases, land contracts, sales contracts, options or other documents;
(2)
No unpaid improvements have been made or materials, machinery or fuel
delivered to the Property that might form the basis of a mechanic's lien or similar lien upon the Property;
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(3)
Seller is not aware of any environmental issues or problems that could adversely
affect the value of the Property or its fitness for Purchaser's intended use that have not been previously
disclosed either by the Purchaser in writing or by any environmental study obtained in connection with
this transaction; and
(4)
To the best of Seller's knowledge, no party has any mineral rights or right of
easement to use the Property in connection with mineral rights.
4.
Deed. Seller at the closing shall execute and deliver to Purchaser a transferable and
recordable warranty deed in fee simple for the Property, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances,
except for those permitted by the terms of this Agreement.
5.
Environmental. Purchaser is purchasing the Property in its present condition after
complete examination of the condition, character and size of the land, and not upon any representation
of Seller, except the representations to be made by Seller pursuant to Section 3 hereof. Seller does,
however, represent that it has no notice of and no knowledge of the existence of any hazardous materials
or environmental problems on or within the Property. Purchaser, at Purchaser's cost, shall be permitted
to obtain a Phase I Environmental Study performed on the Property. In the event that the Phase I study
reveals or discloses any environmental problems with respect to the Property, Purchaser shall have the
right to either order a Phase II study to determine the extent of any problems and the expense involved
in curing any such problems, or to terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to Seller, in which
case the Escrow Amount shall be returned immediately to Purchaser. This Environmental Contingency
must be exercised by the Purchaser within ninety (90) days from the date of receipt of the Phase I
determination or 180 days from receipt of Phase II, if Phase II is required.
6.

Possession. Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to Purchaser at the closing.

Closing. The closing will be held at the offices of the Zanesville City Law Director, 401
7.
Main Street, Suite 209, Zanesville, Ohio, or at such other location as may be agreed upon by the parties
hereto. The closing shall take place on or before ____________. Closing costs are to be
paid as follows:
a.
Seller must pay all Seller's existing loans, liens, and related costs affecting the sale
of the Property and Seller's settlement fees.
b.

Purchaser must pay transfer fees, deed preparation, and recording fees.

8.
Waiver of Relocation Benefits. No person is being displaced as a result of the purchase
contemplated herein and this transaction is not a result under threat of eminent domain. Therefore, the
parties agree that no funds are due or owing as a result of Chapter 5501:2-5-01 to 5501:2-5-06 of the Ohio
Administrative Code and/or under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition
Polices Act of 1970, and as may have been amended at the time of this Agreement (42 U.S.C. 4601, et
seq.).
9.
Taxes. The current year's property taxes will be prorated as of the date of closing. Taxes
for prior years and any special assessments must be paid by Seller before closing. Seller is solely
responsible for any CAUV recoupment, if applicable.
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10.
Inspection/Due Diligence: This Agreement is contingent on Purchaser's satisfaction with
all property inspections and investigations. Purchaser may use any inspectors of its choice, at Purchaser's
expense. Seller must permit Purchaser, and Purchaser's representatives and inspector's reasonable access
for inspections. Purchaser must complete all inspections no later than 30 days after the date of this
Agreement. If Purchaser is not satisfied with the results of any inspection, the Purchaser may propose a
counteroffer for Seller to satisfy the inspection or Purchaser may terminate this Agreement.
11.
Condition of Property: The parties agree that the property shall be sold in its present
condition (as of the date of the execution of this Agreement).
12.

Seller's Representations:

a.
Seller has full right, title, and authority to convey the Property to Purchaser in
accordance with this Agreement and no third party has any option or right of first refusal to
acquire the Property or any interest therein.
b.
No notice has been given of any threatened or pending action to establish an
interest in the Property by any third party or of any proceeding which may result in the issuance
of such notice and Seller is aware of no such notice or proceedings and there is no other existing
claims, suits, actions, or legal proceedings, pending or threatened, that may affect the Property.
c.
There are no liens or encumbrances on, or claims, covenants, conditions,
restrictions, easements, rights of way, assessments or other matters affecting or pending against
the Property.
There are no oral or written leases, occupancy, or license agreements covering all
d.
or any portion of the Property.
e.

No persons occupy the Property.

f.
There are no encroachments or improvements from adjoining land onto the
Property or any part thereof nor from the Property onto adjacent land.
g.
Seller has not contracted with any broker for the sale of the Property and does
not owe any brokerage commission, finder's fee, or the like in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.
h.
To the best of Seller's knowledge, there are no improvements required or
planned by any governmental agency having jurisdiction over the Property that may result in any
charge being levied or assessed against the Property.
There are no sums due, owing, or unpaid for labor or materials furnished to the
i.
Property that might give rise to a mechanic's lien.
13.
Miscellaneous. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the
parties hereto, and there are no outside conditions, representations, warranties or agreements. Any
amendment or modification hereof must be in writing and signed by the parties. The terms and conditions
of this Agreement survive the closing.
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In the event any covenant, condition, or provision herein contained is held to be invalid by a court
of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision shall in no way affect
any other covenant, condition, or provision herein contained.
This Agreement is binding upon the heirs, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto, and all
terms and conditions hereof shall survive the closing. The parties hereto have executed this Agreement
in duplicate in Zanesville, Ohio, on the date set forth above.
PURCHASER

SELLER

The City of Zanesville

By:---------Don Mason
Its: Mayor

Approved as to form:

Scott D. Eickelberger,
Assistant Law Director
City of Zanesville

By:---------
Raymond Wilkes

Mayor and Council
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-81
AN ORDINANCE BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE TO SUBMIT A BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF
REAL PROPERTY AND, IF THE CITY IS THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER, AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION
OF SAID PROPERTY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, the real property located at 2200 Linden Avenue, Zanesville, Ohio, and identified as
Parcel No. 85-36-01-07-000, and consisting of approximately 28.53 acres, commonly known (and referred
to herein) as the "Lear Property" has been a blighted area for several years (full copy of the legal
description is attached hereto as Exhibit A); and
WHEREAS, it is believed that the condition of the Lear Property has had a deleterious effect on
property values, tourism, development, and could threaten the health and public safety of our citizens
and guests; and
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville, Ohio, desires to purchase the Lear Property for the purposes of
blight elimination, demolition, neighborhood revitalization, recreation, and tourism; and
WHEREAS, the Lear Property has recently come under the ownership and control of the
Muskingum County Land Reutilization Corporation; and
WHEREAS, the Muskingum County Land Reutilization Corporation is accepting sealed bids on the
Lear Property on June 19, 2020, and the City has determined it is in the best interests of the City and its
residents to attempt to acquire the Lear Property as the Administration and Council believe the City has
the financial ability, knowledge, and wherewithal to clean and redevelop the site; and
WHEREAS, the Administration and Council believe the City can fully comply with the Bid
Stipulations as set forth by the Muskingum County Land Reutilization Corporation (and attached hereto
as Exhibit B); and

and

WHEREAS, the Lear Property is currently valued by the Muskingum County Auditor at $667,200;

WHEREAS, for the reasons set forth herein, and because the condition of the property represents
a threat to the health, safety and welfare of our residents, and because the timing of the auction precludes
a full set of readings and thirty day referendum period, this measure is deemed to be an emergency;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE OR ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, AS
FOLLOWS:
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SECTION ONE: The Mayor of the City of Zanesville,Ohio, is hereby authorized to submit a bid to
the Muskingum County Land Reutilization Corporation for the purchase of the Lear Property up to the
amount of $500,000.00.
SECTION TWO: Said bid amount shall come from Line Item: 303-4105-56185.
SECTION THREE: If the City is the successful bidder,this Council authorizes the expenditure based
on the actual successful bid and costs, but not in an amount in excess of the funds appropriated and
available for this purpose as set forth above.
SECTION FOUR: If the City is the successful bidder,this Council authorizes the Mayor to enter into
a purchase agreement {upon terms reasonably standard for this community), upon review and approval
of the City Law Director, with the Muskingum County Land Reutilization Corporation for the purchase of
the Lear Property for up to the amount set forth herein,and thereafter to execute any and all documents
necessary for the transfer of the property in accordance with the purchase agreement,and Council hereby
acknowledges its acceptance of the deed for the Lear Property.
SECTION FIVE: For the reasons stated herein, this Ordinance is declared to be an emergency
measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six {6) or more members of City Council, this
Ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval of the Mayor.
Otherwise,it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.
SECTION SIX: It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to this legislation were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of
this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the
public in compliance with all legal requirements, including §121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.
PASSED:
ATTEST:

APPROVED:

____________,2020

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

____________,2020

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason
Mayor

��

ORDINANCE NO. 2020---70
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE AGREEMENT TO CREATE THE
CITY OF ZANESVILLE - PERRY TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; AND APPRPVING A COOPERATIVE
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 715 empowers certain political subdivisions to
form joint economic development districts to share in the costs of improvements for economic
development purposes; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 715.72, the City of Zanesville,
Muskingum County, Ohio (the "City") and Perry Township, Muskingum County, Ohio (the
"Township") have negotiated and intend to enter into the City of Zanesville - Perry Township
Joint Economic Development District Agreement (the "JEDD Agreement") to create and provide
for the operation of a joint economic development district known as the City of Zanesville Perry Township Joint Economic Development District (the "JEDD"); and
WHEREAS, the stated purpose of the JEDD Agreement is to facilitate economic
development to create or preserve jobs and employment opportunities and to improve the
economic welfare of the people in the State of Ohio, Muskingum County, the Township, and the
City; and
WHEREAS, the Zanesville-Muskingum County Port Authority (the "Port Authority"), as
the only property owner in the territory proposed for inclusion in the JEDD (the "District") and
there being no businesses yet in the District, has petitioned for the formation of the JEDD, the
territory to be included is not subject to any zoning regulations that would be adverse to the
purposes of the JEDD, and no electors reside within the District; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 715.72, the City conducted a public
hearing regarding the JEDD Agreement and the JEDD, with appropriate public notice, and made
available for public examination all documents required by law for review; and
WHEREAS, the City, the Township, the Port Authority, and Muskingum County, Ohio
(the "County") desire to collaborate on the acquisition, construction, improvement, and
equipment of public infrastructure improvements and private commercial improvements within
the District by entering into a Cooperative Development Agreement (the "Cooperative
Development Agreement") setting forth certain obligations of the City, the Township, the Port
Authority, and the County with respect to the District.
Ohio:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of
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SECTION 1. The Council approves the JEDD Agreement, in substantially the form
attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit A, and authorizes the Mayor to sign the JEDD Agreement.
The Mayor and the Clerk of Council are jointly authorized and directed to execute and deliver
any other agreements, documents or certificates, and take all other actions, necessary to
accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance.
SECTION 2. The Council adopts the Economic Development Plan for the District as
provided in Exhibit A of the JEDD Agreement.
SECTION 3. The Clerk of Council shall retain on file a copy of the JEDD Agreement and
its exhibits, including (i) the Economic Development Plan; (ii) the JEDD map and list of included
parcels; and (iii) Ohio Revised Code Section 715.72 as effective on the date of the executed
Agreement. Upon the creation of the JEDD, the Clerk of Council is authorized to file a copy or
provide for the filing of all documents required by Ohio Revised Code Section 715.72(0) with
the Ohio Development Services Agency in accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section
715.72(0).
SECTION 4. The Council approves the Cooperative Development Agreement, in
substantially the form attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit B, and authorizes the Mayor to sign
the Cooperative Development Agreement. The Mayor and the Clerk of Council are jointly
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any other agreements, documents or
certificates, and take all other actions, necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance.
SECTION 5. This Council hereby finds and determines that all formal actions of this
Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open
meeting of this Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees
that resulted in those formal actions occurred in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with law, including Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22.
SECTION 6. This Ordinance shall be effective at the earliest date allowed by law.
Signed:
1st Reading: -----� 2020
2020
2nd Reading:
2020
3rd Reading:

Donald Mason
Mayor of City of Zanesville
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AUTHENTICATION
This is to certify that this Ordinance was duly adopted and filed with the Clerk of Council
of the City of Zanesville, this __ day of _______, 2020.

Clerk of Council

CERTIFICATE
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance duly
adopted by the City Council of the City of Zanesville, Muskingum County, Ohio.

Clerk of Council
Dated: -----------
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CITY OF ZANESVILLE-PERRY TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AGREEMENT
This City of Zanesville-Perry Township Joint Economic Development District Agreement
(the Agreement) is made and entered into this_ day of _____, 2020 (the Effective Date),
by and between the CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO (the City), a mw1icipal corporation duly
organized and validly existing under the laws of, and a political subdivision of, the State of Ohio
(the State) and having an address for purposes hereof at 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
and PERRY TOWNSHIP, MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO (the Township and, together with
the City, the Contracting Parties and each a Contracting Party), a political subdivision of the
State and having an address for the purposes hereof at 4625 Boggs Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701,
in accordance with the terms and provisions set forth herein.
WHEREAS, the City and the Township are located entirely within Muskingum County,
Ohio (Muskingum County) and share contiguous territorial boundaries;
WHEREAS, the Zanesville-Muskingum Com1ty P01t Authority (the Port Authority) has
purchased or has the option to purchase approximately 203.41 acres located in the Township as
more fully desc1ibed in Exhibit A (the Site), to develop into port authority facilities as defined in
Ohio Revised Code (ORC) Section 4582.21, including office and commercial space on the Site
(the Project);
WHEREAS, in order to support the Project as well as additional economic development in
neighboring areas of Muskingum County, the Site requires certain necessary infrastructure
improvements, including but not limited to the road maintenance and improvements, snow
removal, and emergency, police, and fire services;
WHEREAS, pursuant to the tenns of a Cooperative Agreement of even date herewith (the
Cooperative Ag1·eement), the City, the County of Muskingwn, Ohio (the County), the Port
Authority, and the Township will provide services to the Site as provided therein and the Po1t
Authority will provide for the construction of the Project;
WHEREAS, the City and the Township desire to promote cooperative economic
development efforts in the area of the Township generally located along State Route 40 east of the
territorial bom1daries of the City, including through effo1ts to promote the economic development
of the City, the Township, and the County, by means of creating a joint economic development
district (the District or the JEDD) pursuant to ORC Section 715.72 (the Act), which District shall
facilitate economic development to create or preserve jobs and employment opportunities within
the meaning of ORC Section 715.72(C), thereby improving the economic welfare of residents of
the City, the Township, and the State generally; and
WHEREAS, the legislative authorities of the City and the Township each have approved,
authorized, and directed the City and the Township, respectively, to make and enter into this
Agreement, by and through their respective officers in accordance with Ordinance No.
_______, enacted by the City on ______, 2020, and Resolution No.
_____, adopted by the Township on ________, 2020.
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The City shall be responsible for filing with the Director of Development Services of the
State the documents required to be filed by ORC Section 715.72(0). Each Contracting Party shall
separately bear its own costs related to the establishment of the District, including any professional
engineering, legal counsel, or other services that may be necessary.
Section 4.

Tenn.

The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date (which Effective
Date is more than thirty-one (31) days after the Agreement was approved in accordance with ORC
Section 715.72(M)(3)) and shall continue for a period of thirty (30) years (the Initial Term). The
Agreement shall automatically extend for one renewal tenn of thitiy (30) years (the Renewal
Term) unless (i) either the City or the Township notifies the other Contracting Party in writing at
least one year prior to the expiration of the Initial Tenn that it does not intend to renew this
Agreement, or (ii) either the City or the Township notifies the other Contracting Party in writing
at least one year prior to the expiration of the Initial Tenn or any Renewal Term that it is requesting
to extend this Agreement beyond the originally contemplated Initial Tenn of thirty (30) years or
the originally contemplated Renewal Term of thirty (30) years, as applicable, in which case this
Agreement shall extend in accordance with such written request if such written request is accepted
by the other Contracting Party. In the event of any expansion of the District pursuant to Section 6
herein, the Agreement shall begin a new Initial Term, followed by a Renewal Tenn upon the tenns
and conditions described herein.
This Agreement may only be terminated in compliance with applicable statutory provisions
and in accordance with Section 5 of this Agreement. The Agreement shall continue in existence
throughout its term and shall be binding on the Contracting Parties and on either Contracting
Party's succeeding entities, whether such entities succeed by aimexation, merger, or otherwise.
The provision herein for the Initial Tenn and any Renewal Term or other extension of this
Agreement recognizes that the accrual of benefits to the Contracting Parties resulting from this
Agreement may take decades.
Section 5.

Amendments to the Agreement Other than to Amend to Add Property.

The Contracting Parties may amend or modify the tenns of this Agreement or tenninate
this Agreement at any time by mutual agreement. An amendment or modification to this
Agreement shall not be effective or binding on the Contracting Parties unless the legislative
authorities of both Contracting Parties pass the appropriate legislation agreeing to and authorizing
the amendment to this Agreement within ninety (90) days of each other.
This Agreement may only be tenninated pursuant to its tenns as set forth in Section 4 or in
accordance with this Section. If the Contracting Parties mutually agree to tenninate this
Agreement, such agreement to terminate must provide for the unwinding of this Agreement and
must be approved by the legislative authorities of both Contracting Parties within ninety (90) days
of each other. Upon termination of this Agreement, the City shall keep and maintain the records
of the District in accordance with the City's records retention policy.

12529900v4
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If any portion of this Agreement becomes null and void or illegal, or the perfonnance of
any provision of this Agreement becomes impossible, through any subsequent change, amendment
or enactment of state law or through a ruling of any court that has jurisdiction over the Contracting
Parties, the Contracting Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to reach mutual agreement
regarding the manner and method of amending this Agreement to bring the Agreement into
compliance with then-applicable statutory provisions or case law and to maintain the intent of the
Contracting Parties under this Agreement and/or to rebalance the equities between the Contracting
Parties consistent with the intent of this Agreement. In the event that the Contracting Parties are
unable to reach a new agreement that is authorized and approved by the legislative authorities of
both Contracting Parties, then the Contracting Parties may either mutually agree to tenninate this
Agreement in accordance with the provisions of the preceding paragraph, or either Contracting
Party may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction to interpret the contract consistent with then
applicable statutes or case law and, if necessary, modify or terminate this Agreement in order to
comply with then-applicable statutes or case law and to preserve the equities of the Contracting
Parties as set forth in this Agreement.
Section 6.

Addition of Prope1ty to the District.

Subject to any applicable provisions of the ORC now existing or hereafter adopted,
including but not limited to ORC Section 715.72(L), this Agreement, including the exhibits hereto,
may be amended from time to time to add property to the District. Property may be added to the
District upon the filing with either Contracting Party of a request by the majority of the owners of
the property to be added to the District and a majority of the owners of the businesses to be added
to the District. Upon agreement of both Contracting Parties, the Agreement, including Exhibits
A, B, and C hereto, shall be amended to add such property to the tenitory of the District pursuant
to the request of the majo1ity of the owners of that property and a majority of the owners of those
businesses. Property added to the District shall meet all of the requirements of Section 3 herein
and ORC Section 715.72(E)(l), and all procedures ofORC Section 715.72(L) shall be followed in
com1ection with any such addition of property to the Dist1ict. Property shall not be removed from
the District without the agreement of both Contracting Parties.
Section 7.
A.

The City shall:
1.

11.
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Contributions and Covenants of the Contracting Parties.

Collect, administer, enforce, and audit the JEDD income tax applicable in
the District in accordance with this Agreement.
Provide municipal water and sewer service to the District in accordance
with all City policies, rules, and regulations until the completion of all utility
upgrades, at which time the County will provide water and sewer service to
the District.

4
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B.

m.

Through its City Auditor or his or her designee, provide service as fiscal
officer to the District, including administration and management of JEDD
Board accounts.

1v.

111 e City shall work in good faith with the Township regarding any
proposed incentives for locating new businesses or expanding existing
businesses within the District and, further the City agrees and affirms that
it will not umeasonably withhold written approval of the exemptions set
forth in ORC Section 715.72(U).

v.

As provided in ORC Section 715.72(R), the City hereby agrees that, for so
long as this Agreement is in effect, it shall not annex any real property
within the District. To the extent not prohibited by law, the City shall not
accept any such annexation within the District

The Township shall:
1.

C.
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Provide all usual and customary governmental services to the District that
are furnished by the Township to other unincorporated portions of the
Township.

11.

Be responsible for the acceptance, dedication, and maintenance of all
existing or future Township roads located within the District.

111.

Have the right to issue and reissue levies in all areas of the Township,
including within the District, for the provision of such services.

1v.

Pursuant to ORC Section 715.72(U), throughout the tenn of the JEDD,
obtain the express written consent of the City prior to granting any tax
exemption for any property in the JEDD District. The foregoing limitation
shall apply solely to tax exemptions set fo1ih in ORS Section 715.72(U),
which include exemptions established pursuant to ORC Chapter 1728 and
ORC Section 3735.67, 5709.62, 5709.63, and 5709.632, as applicable.

v.

Maintain and enforce zoning regulations within the District, if, as to the
Site, such property is subject to zoning laws or regulations when the District
was formed, otherwise if such property is subject to zoning laws or
regulations when the property is added to the District.

The Contracting Patties shall:
1.

jointly cooperate in carrying out the economic development plan for the
Distiict attached hereto as Exhibit B.

11.

collaborate through the District with respect to capital improvements in the
event that the Contracting Parties jointly detem1ine that economic
development in the District creates a demand for public infrastructure
5
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improvements serving the District or the area smrounding the District
including, but not limited to, and solely upon joint agreement of the
Contracting Paiiies, paying costs of infrastructure improvements within or
otherwise benefitting the District; which infrastructure improvements may
include improvements relating to roads, water and sewer, electric, natural
gas, fiber, cable, or any other capital improvements directly supporting non
residential development within the Dist1ict, or, upon the joint agreement of
the Contracting Parties, otherwise benefitting the District, but which
infrastructure improvements shall not include ordinary maintenance or
repairs.
111.

Section 8.

pay equal shares of any District administrative costs in excess of income tax
revenue received by the JEDD Board each year or otherwise available to
the JEDD Board for the purposes of paying administrative costs.
Board of Directors of the District.

The Board is hereby established to govern the Distiict. The Board shall consist of three
members appointed as set fo1ih in ORC Section 715.72(P)(2).
A.

The initial City member of the Board shall be _____________
Subject to any applicable restrictions in ORC Section 715.72, all future City
members of the Board shall be appointed by City Council and shall serve at the
pleasure of City Council.

B.

The initial Township member of the Board shall be ___________
Subject to any applicable restrictions in ORC Section 715.72, all future Township
members of the Board shall be appointed by a majority vote of the Board of
Township Trustees and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Township
Trustees.

C.

The third member of the Board shall be nominated by the Po1i Authority and
appointed by the unanimous vote of the initial City member and the initial
Township member. Subject to any applicable restrictions in ORC Section 715.72,
all future members of the Board selected pursuant to this Section 8(C) shall be
nominated to the Board by the Port Authority and appointed by the unanimous vote
of the City member and the Township member.

D.

When applicable, the representative of the business owner or owners located in the
JEDD District shall be appointed by mutual agreement of the City member and the
Township member, provided that if the City member and the Township member do
not so appoint a representative under this Section 3(b)(iv) within thirty (30) days
after (A) the date that the first business becomes operational in the JEDD District,
(B) the end of a te1m of office for a business owner representative, or (C) the
occurrence of any other vacancy in the office of business owner representative, the
chairperson of the Board shall notify the business with the greatest number of
employees working in the JEDD District that said business is entitled to appoint the
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business owner representative, provided that any such appointment shall be made
in writing by a duly authorized officer of the appointing business and delivered to
the chairperson of the Board.
E.

When applicable, the representative of the employees working in the JEDD District
shall be appointed by mutual agreement of the City member and the Township
member, provided that if the City member and the Township member do not so
appoint a representative under this Section 3(b )(iv) within thirty (30) days after (A)
the date that the first business becomes operational in the JEDD District, (B) the
end of a term of office for a business owner representative, or (C) the occurrence
of any other vacancy in the office of business owner representative, the chairperson
of the Board shall notify the business with the greatest number of employees
working in the JEDD District that said business is entitled to appoint the employee
representative, provided that any such appointment shall be made in writing by a
duly authorized officer of the appointing business and delivered to the chairperson
of the Board.

The members of the Board shall serve without compensation. Necessary and authorized
expenses incurred by members on behalf of the District shall be reimbursed from District funds in
accordance with procedures established by the Board.
The Board shall have the following officers (hereinafter, the Officers): a Chairperson, a
Vice-Chairperson, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. The Chairperson shall be the Board Member
specified in ORC Section 715.72. The Board shall elect the Vice-Chairperson, who shall be a
Board Member. The Treasurer of the Board shall be the City Auditor or his or her designee of the
City, provided that the Treasurer is not required to be a Board Member. The Board shall elect the
Secretary, provided that the Secretary is not required to be a Board Member. The Officers shall
be elected at the first meeting of the Board and thereafter every other year for two-year terms and
shall serve until their respective successors take office. The Board shall establish a procedure for
conducting those elections. The Officers shall perform such duties as provided herein and such
additional duties as may be required from time to time by the Board. The Board may employ such
additional personnel or professional services as may be necessary to assist the Board or the Officers
in the perfonnance of their duties.
Section 9.

Power, Duties, and Functions of Board.

The Board shall meet at least once each calendar year on a date detennined by the Board.
The Board shall adopt procedures for holding and conducting regular and special meetings. The
Contracting Parties shall provide the Board with necessary meeting space. The City shall also
provide any necessary clerical and administrative assistance that the Board may need from time to
time, including telephone services and a mailing address.
A minimum of two members shall constitute a quorum for Board meeting purposes. The
Board shall act through resolutions adopted by the Board. A resolution must receive the
affirmative vote of at least a majority of members present and constituting a quornm to be adopted.
A resolution adopted by the Board shall be immediately effective unless otherwise provided in that
resolution.
12529900v4
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The Board may adopt by-laws for the regulation of its affairs and the conduct of its business
consistent with this Agreement. The Chairperson shall preside over and conduct the meetings of
the Board in accordance with its by-laws or other procedures adopted by the Board. Pursuant to
ORC Section 715.72(P)(5), the Board is a public body for the purposes of ORC Section 121.22,
the Ohio Public Meetings Act. All meetings of the Board, whether regularly scheduled or special
meetings, must comply with the provisions of ORC Section 121.22 as amended from time to time.
The Vice-Chairperson shall act as Chairperson in the temporary absence of the
Chairperson. The Secretary shall be responsible for the records of the Board including, but not
limited to, con-espondence and minutes of the meetings of the Board. The City Auditor or his or
her designee of the City, as Treasurer of the Board, shall be the fiscal officer of the Board and shall
be responsible for all fiscal matters of the Board including, but not limited to, the preparation of
the budget and the appropriations resolution, paying or providing for the payment of expenses of
operation of the Board, receiving, safekeeping, and investing, or providing for the receipt,
safekeeping, and investment of, funds of the Board and maintaining, and providing for the
maintenance of, accurate accounts of all receipts and expenditures. The Board shall designate by
resolution, or in its by-laws, those Officers who may sign documents on behalf of the Board.
The Board, upon the recommendation of the City Auditor or his or her desi gnee of the City,
shall adopt an ammal budget for the District. The fiscal year of the District shall be the same as
the fiscal year of the City, unless otherwise detem1ined by the Board with the consent of the City
Auditor or his or her designee of the City. The budget shall estimate the revenues of the Distiict
and the expenses of the operation of the District. The Board shall establish an appropriations
procedure to provide for payment of the long-term maintenance of the District and the distribution
of income tax revenues in accordance with Section 10 herein.
The Board, on behalf of the District, shall:
A.

establish and maintain such funds or accounts as it deems necessary, either of its
own, or in conjunction with or through the Contracting Parties to this Agreement,
which accounts shall be managed by the City Auditor or his or her designee of the
City;

B.

authorize one or more Officers to sign all instruments necessary or incidental to the
performance of its duties and the execution of its powers under this Agreement;

C.

adopt a resolution to levy an income tax within the District in accordance with ORC
Section 715.72(F)(5) and Section 10 herein;

D.

apply JEDD Board Revenue, as defined in Section 10(D) herein, for Board
administrative expenses, for infrastructure improvements and for any other lawful
purpose;

E.

use any other revenues of the District available to the Board to can-y out the
economic development plan for the District and, from time to time, modify the
econ01mc development plan to better accomplish the public purposes of the
District;

12529900v4

8

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2020-70

F.

apply for, receive and accept from any federal agency, state agency or other person
or entity grants for or in aid of the construction or operation of any District facility,
or for programs or other projects of the District, and receive and accept aid or
contributions from any source of money, property, labor or other things of value,
to be held, used and applied only for the benefit of the District and the purposes for
which such grants, aid or contributions are made;

G.

purchase liability insurance protecting the District, its Board or Officers or such
other insurance as the Board may detem1ine to be necessary and appropriate;

H.

be authorized to execute any agreement, cooperative agreement, financing
agreement, or other anangement with any private entity and with any other political
subdivision or governmental entity as may be pennitted by law, including but not
limited to the Port Authority, Muskingum County, the City, and the Township, to
provide or facilitate the provision ofpublic infrastructure improvements that benefit
of the Distiict or whenever otherwise necessary or convenient to cmry out the
powers granted in this Agreement, including, without limitation, any agreement
related to any economic development program, tax increment financing program,
special assessment program, or bond financing undertaking by any Contracting
Party or political subdivision in cooperation with any Contracting Party;

I.

be authorized to do all acts and things necessary or convenient to caITy out the
powers granted in ORC Section 715.72 or any successor provisions thereto; and

J.

be authorized to do all acts and things necessary or convenient to carry out the
powers grm1ted in this Agreement.

The City and the Township agree that the JEDD Board may use any available revenues of
the District to carry out the economic development plan for the District and may, from time to
time, modify the economic development plan to better accomplish the public purposes of the
District. The City and the Township agree that the Board or either Conti·acting Party may execute
any agreement, cooperative agreement, financing agreement, or other arrangement with any
private entity and with any other political subdivision, including but not limited to Muskingum
County, the Township, and the City, to provide or facilitate the provision of public infrastructure
improvements or services to benefit the District or whenever otherwise necessary or convenient to
caITy out the powers granted in this Agreement, including, without limitation, any agreement
related to any tax increment financing program, special assessment program, or bond financing
undertaking by any Contracting Party or political subdivision in cooperation with any Contracting
Paiiy.
Section 10.
A.
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Income Tax to be Levied in the District.

The Bom·d at its initial meeting shall adopt a resolution to levy a tax on income
earned by persons working within the District and based on net profits ofbusinesses
located in the District in accordance with ORC Section 715.72(F)(5) (the Income
Tax Resolution). The Income Tax Resolution shall be effective until it is replaced
by a subsequent Income Tax Resolution. Pursuant to ORC Section 715. 72(F)(5),
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all income tax collected from any business or entity within the District or any
person working within the District shall be subject to this Agreement and included
in the total income tax revenue collected within the District (collectively, the Total
Revenues). The income tax shall go into effect as soon as legally permissible.
B.

The Income Tax Resolution shall establish the income tax rate for employees
working in the District (the Employee Rate), which Employee Rate shall at all
times during the tenn of this Agreement equal the rate levied in the City. As of the
date of execution of this Agreement by the Contracting Parties, the City income tax
rate is 1.9%. In each annual Income Tax Resolution, the Board shall adjust the
Employee Rate as necessary so that it matches the rate of income taxation in the
City.

C.

The Income Tax Resolution also shall establish the income tax rate applicable to
net profits of businesses located in the District (the Business Rate), which Business
Rate shall at all times during the tenn of this Agreement equal the rate levied in the
City. In each annual Income Tax Resolution, the Board shall adjust the Business
Rate as necessary so that it matches the rate of income taxation in the City.

D.

The Income Tax Resolution shall designate that (a) a reasonable amount of the
Total Revenues collected each year, as detennined by the Board, shall be paid to
the Board for the administrative expenses of the Board, which administrative
expenses may include reimbursement to the City for the time of employees of the
City in canying out Section 7(a)(i) of this Agreement, outside legal or accounting
fees, the cost of public notice and the like, and (b) the remaining amount of the
Total Revenues collected each year after the application of Section I0(D)(a) shall
be divided as follows: (i) 30% shall be paid to the City; (ii) 30% shall be paid to
Muskingum County; (iii) 30% shall be paid to the Port Authority; and (iv) 10%
shall be paid to the Township.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, before the Board may adopt an Income Tax
Resolution, the Board shall (i) confinn that the City, the Port Authority,
Muskingum County, and the Township have met to consider whether any
modifications to the allocation of Total Revenues may be appropriate for that year;
and (ii) upon a request approved in writing by the applicable officials of each of the
City and the Township, modify the allocation of Total Revenues according to such
written request.
At such time as the Board adopts the second Income Tax Resolution following the
first Income Tax Resolution and every other year thereafter, the Board shall review
the amount of its administrative expenses from the preceding two year period and
include such findings in its detennination of its reasonable administrative expenses
for the succeeding Income Tax Resolutions until such time as the Board makes a
new finding under this Section.

12529900v4
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E.

The Board shall resolve that, pursuant to this Agreement, the City will collect,
administer, and enforce the income tax within the District in accordance with this
Agreement and the City's rules and regulations cun-ently in effect and as may be
amended from time to time regarding the collection, administration, and
enforcement of the municipal income tax in effect within the City.

F.

Pursuant to ORC Section 715.72(F)(5)(c), the Board shall enter into an agreement
with the City (the District Income Tax Collection and Distribution Agreement)
as expeditiously as possible upon the District's creation to administer, collect and
enforce the income tax on behalf of the Distiict in accordance with this Agreement.
The District Income Tax Collection and Distribution Agreement shall provide that
the City is responsible for the receipt, safeguarding, and investment of the income
tax revenues collected within the Disti·ict and that the City shall make an annual
w1itten report to be mailed to the Board and the Township within sixty (60) days of
the end of the fiscal year regarding the receipt and distribution of the income tax of
the District dming the previous fiscal year. In addition, the Board may enter into
such additional agreements as it determines may be necessary to effectuate the
collection of income tax by the City within the District, including with respect to
the apportiomnent of income tax liability under ORC Section 718.02(B).

G.

The Board may establish procedures by which the income tax levied on employee
wages earned within the District is to be collected from employees employed within
the District or withheld by businesses located in the District, and the Board shall
establish procedures by which the income tax on net profits of businesses located
in the District is to be collected from one or more businesses located in the District.
Such procedures may provide for the payment of withholding or estimated taxes by
those employees or businesses and the reconciliation of income taxes paid on net
profits of businesses between fiscal years.

Section 11.

Defaults and Remedies.

A failure to comply with the tenns of this Agreement shall constitute a default hereunder.
The Contracting Party in default shall have sixty (60) days after receiving written notice from the
other Contracting Party of the event of default and demand to cure the default. If the default is not
cured within that time pe1iod, the non-defaulting Contracting Party may sue the defaulting
Contracting Party for specific performance under this Agreement or for damages or both. This
Agreement may not be tenninated because of default under the Agreement by either Contracting
Party unless termination occurs as provided for in Section 5 of this Agreement.
The Contracting Parties agree that the nature of the Agreement is unique and monetary
damages are inadequate to fully compensate a non-defaulting Contracting Party. Accordingly, the
Conti·acting Parties agree that specific pe1formance is an appropriate and available remedy for a
breach of contract action brought pursuant to this Agreement in addition to any other remedy
available at law and equity. Both Contracting Parties also agree that because monetary damages
are inadequate to fully compensate a non-defaulting Contracting Party, a non-defaulting

12529900v4

11

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2020-70

Contracting Party has the right to seek an injunction or other equitable relief to prevent the
continued breach of this Agreement by a defaulting Contracting Party.
Section 12.

Support of Contract.

This Agreement shall be binding upon the Contracting Parties and their lawful successors
and assigns. The Contracting Parties agree to cooperate with each other and to use their best efforts
to do all things necessary for the creation and continued operation of the District. In the event that
this Agreement, or any of its tenns, conditions, or provisions is challenged by any third party or
parties in a court of law, the Contracting Parties agree to cooperate with one another and to use
their best efforts in defending this Agreement with the object of upholding this Agreement. Each
Contracting Party shall bear its own costs in any such proceeding challenging this Agreement or
any tenn or provision herein.
Section 13.

Severability.

With the exception of Section 7 or Section 10 of this Agreement, if any other paragraph,
provision or section of this Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, then:
(i)

that illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remainder of any other paragraph,
provision or section, all of which shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal
or invalid portion were not contained herein;

(ii)

the illegality or invalidity of any paragraph, provision or section shall not affect any
legality or applicability of any other paragraph, provision, or section of this
Agreement; and

(iii)

each paragraph, provision, or section of this Agreement shall be deemed to be
effective, operative, made, assumed, entered into, or taken in the manner and to the
full extent pennitted by law.

If any paragraph, provision, or part thereof of Section 7 or Section 10 of this Agreement is
held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, the Contracting Parties may jointly detennine to
te1minate this Agreement pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement.
Section 14.

Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Ohio, and in pa1iicular, ORC Section 715.72 in effect as of the date when the
owners of property in the District filed their petitions consenting to the formation of the District.
A copy of ORC Section 715. 72 in effect as of the date when the owners of property in the District
filed their petitions consenting to the formation of the District is attached hereto as Exhibit C. In
the event that ORC Section 715.72 is amended or is supplemented by the enactment of one or more
new sections of the ORC relating to joint economic development districts, the Contracting Pa1iies
shall follow the provisions of ORC Section 715.72 when the owners of property in the District
filed their petitions consenting to the formation of the District, unless the Contracting Parties agree
to amend this Agreement in accordance with Section 5 herein. If any amendment or subsequent
12529900v4
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enactment ofone or more new sections ofthe ORC relating to joint economic development districts
renders compliance by the Board, the Contracting Parties, or the Disttict with Sections 7 or 10 of
this Agreement illegal or impossible, the Contracting Parties may jointly detennine to tenninate
this Agreement pursuant to Section 5 ofthis Agreement.
Section 15.

Miscellaneous.

Any notice or consent required or pennitted to be given by or on behalf of either party to
the other shall be given by mailing such notice or consent by United States certified or registered
mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, or via a reputable express overnight mail service
which provides proof of delivery addressed to the parties set as set forth below or at such other
address as may be specified from time to time in writing delivered to the other party. Notices shall
be effective upon receipt or refusal, as the case may be:
Ifto the City:

City ofZanesville, Ohio
Attn: Mayor
401 Market Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701
(740) 617-4908

Ifto the Township:

Pen-y Township, Muskingum County, Ohio
Attn: President
4625 Boggs Road
Zanesville, Ohio 43701
(740) 819-2344

The captions and headings herein are for convenience only and in no way define, limit, or
describe the scope or intent ofany provisions or sections herein.
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
regarded as an original and all ofwhich together shall constitute but one and the same instrument.
[Signature Page Follows]
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fN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Contracting Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly
signed in their respective names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date first
hereinbefore written.
TOWNSHIP OF PERRY,
MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO

CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO

By:

By:

By:

By:

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

12529900v4

Mayor

Approved as to form and conectness:

Director of Law

[Signature Page to City of Zanesville - Perry Township JEDD Agreement]
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CITY'S FISCAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Fiscal Officer of the City of Zanesville, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
moneys required to meet the obligations of the City during the year 2020 under the foregoing
Agreement have been lawfully appropriated by the City Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio
for such purpose and are in the treasury of the City or in the process of collection to the credit of
an appropriate fund, free from any previous encumbrances. This Certificate is given in compliance
with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.41 and 5705.44.

Fiscal Officer
City of Zanesville, Ohio
Dated:

-------�

12529900v4
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TOWNSHIP'S FISCAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Fiscal Officer of Perry Township, Muskingum County Ohio, hereby
certifies that the moneys required to meet the obligations of the Township during the year 2020
under the foregoing Agreement have been lawfully appropriated by the Board of Trustees of Perry
Township, Muskingum County, Ohio for such purpose and are in the treasury of the Township or
in the process of collection to the credit of an appropriate fund, free from any previous
encumbrances. This Certificate is given in compliance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.41
and 5705.44.

Fiscal Officer
Perry Township, Muskingum County, Ohio
Dated: --------� 2020
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EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP
OF TERRITORY TO BE INCLUDED IN
CITY OF ZANESVILLE-PERRY TOWNSIDP
JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The City of Zanesville-Perry Township Joint Economic Development District (the
District) shall include a portion of the following parcels, as identified in the records of the County
Auditor of Muskingum County, Ohio as of October 30, 2019:

Muskingum County Auditor Parcel Number

Approx. Acreage

51-70-03-13-000

203.41

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the property identified above and thereby included in the
District shall be consistent with the property identified in that certain Option to Purchase Real
Estate dated April 20, 2017 by and between the Zanesville-Muskingum County Port Authority and
Jeff Robert Beam and Jack W. McClelland, Co-Trustees of Ross L. Johnston Trust.
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EXHIBIT A
The real property included in the City of Zanesville - Perry Township Joint Economic
Development District is outlined in red on the following map:
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EXHIBITB
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Introduction

The purpose ofthis plan, established pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 715.72(F)(3),
is to set forth the economic development objectives ofthe City ofZanesville-Perry Township Joint
Economic Development District (the District). This plan shall serve as a framework for District
efforts to engineer economic growth in Perry Township (the Township) and the City ofZanesville
(the City) as well as throughout the region as a whole.
Background and Goals

The District is located on approximately 203.41 acres near intersection ofHicks Road and
State Route 40 in Perry Township in Muskingum County, Ohio (the Site). Other industry is located
near the District, and the District is a prime location for industry ifsupported by infrastructure and
services. The Zanesville-Muskingum County Port Authority (the Port Authority), has expressed
interest in undertaking the acquisition, construction, equipping and improvement ofport authority
facilities as defined in Ohio Revised Code Section 4582.21, including office and commercial space
(the Project) on the Site if necessary infrastructure improvements can be provided.
The District, together with its partners the Township and the City and with the assistance
of the Port Authority, has agreed to cooperate to attract and retain quality employers and to fuel
continued industrial growth in the region.
Specifically, the District will pursue the following objectives:
• To support the Project and additional economic development in the vicinity of the
Project;
• To stabilize the local tax base through the encouragement of commercial investment;
• To ensure that the District's growth is supported by adequate governmental services,
including police and fire protection;
• To ensure that the District's growth is supported by adequate roads in the District,
including the maintenance of existing roads and the construc6on and maintenance of
necessary future roads;
• To promote development opportunities; and
• To encourage development that will retain and create quality jobs in the Township and
the City.
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COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
This COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the Agreement) is entered into
as of this [_J day of [_J, 2020 (the Execution Date) by and among the CITY OF
ZANESVILLE, OHIO, a municipal corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws
the State of Ohio (the State) (the City), the COUNTY OF MUSKINGUM, OHIO, a county duly
organized and validly existing under the constitution and laws of the State (the County), the
ZANESVILLE-MUSKINGUM COUNTY PORT AUTHORITY, an Ohio port authority duly
organized and validly existing under the laws of the State (the Port Authority), and the
TOWNSHIP OF PERRY, MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO, a township duly organized and
validly existing under the constitution and laws of the State (the Township and, together with the
City, the County, and the Port Authority the Cooperative Parties).
RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Parties share a mutual interest in economic development that
creates and preserves jobs and employment oppo1tunities throughout the County, thereby
improving the economic welfare of the residents of the City, the Township, the County and the
State as a whole; and
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Parties seek a collaborative approach to fostering and
supporting business growth in their communities, including specifically growth that is anticipated
to occur in certain real property located within the territorial boundaries of the Township and
depicted on Exhibit A hereto (the Cooperative District); and
WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code (ORC) Section 9.482 authorizes contracts for services
between political subdivisions, and ORC Chapter 715 empowers municipal corporations and
townships to establish a joint economic development district (JEDD) for the purposes of
facilitating economic development by means of, among other things, providing for appropriate
infrastructure and public services to suppo1i such growth and establishing an income tax to pay
the costs thereof; and
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Parties have determined to pursue the creation of a JEDD
with respect to the Cooperative District pursuant to the terms hereof and the City and the Township
will, to that end, enter into an agreement creating and governing the JEDD according to the tenns
set forth in Exhibit B; and
WHEREAS, the Port Authority owns or soon will own all of the real property located in
the Cooperative District and has presented to the parties to this Agreement its plan to develop port
authority facilities as defined in Ohio Revised Code Section 4582.21, including office and
commercial space in a mixed-use business and industrial park (Project); and
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Parties wish to cooperate in the development of certain public
infrastructure improvements and roads within and supporting the Project and wish to outline the
rights and responsibilities relating thereto in this Agreement; and
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WHEREAS, the legislative authorities of the City, the County, the Port Authority, and the
Township each have approved, authorized and directed the City, the County, the Port Authority,
and the Township, respectively, to make and enter into this Agreement by and through their
respective officers in accordance with Ordinance No. [_], adopted by the City on [_], 2020,
Resolution No. [_], enacted by the County on[_], 2020, Resolution No. [_], enacted by the
Port Authority on[_], 2020, and Resolution No. [_], enacted by the Township on[_], 2020.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and
promises herein contained, the sufficiency of which are acknowledged by the parties hereto, the
City, the County, the Port Authority, and the Township hereby agree as follows:
Section 1.

Term.

This Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect from the date hereof
(a)
and until[_], 2050 (the Initial Term), at which time, unless otherwise terminated by any or all
of the Cooperative Parties, this Agreement automatically shall renew for one successive terms of
30 years (the Renewal Term); provided, however, that notwithstanding anything to the contrary
herein, this Agreement shall automatically renew and remain in effect for a period of one or more
Renewal Terms, as applicable, for so long as the JEDD Agreement, as defined herein, shall remain
in effect. During the final year of the Initial Term and the final year of each Renewal Term, any
of the Cooperative Parties may, by written notification to the other parties following authorization
by its legislative authority, cause this Agreement to terminate at the end of such term. The
provision herein for the Initial Term of this Agreement recognizes that the accrual of benefits to
the parties from this Agreement may take decades.
(b)
This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual consent of the
Cooperative Parties as authorized by their respective legislative authorities as provided herein.
Unless otherwise agreed, in order for such tennination to be effective, the legislative actions of the
Cooperative Parties that terminate this Agreement must occur and be effective within a period of
ninety (90) days of each other.
Section 2.

Covenants of the Citv, the County, the Port Authority. and the Township.

(a)
Territory. The Cooperative Parties hereby agree to the covenants of this Section 2
with respect to any parcel of real property located, either in whole or in part, within the Cooperative
District. It is the intent of the Cooperative Parties that the territory of the Cooperative District, as
depicted in Exhibit A, may be amended from time to time so that it conforms with the territory of
the JEDD (the JEDD District). An amendment to the territory of the Cooperative District requires
written consent of the Township Board of Trustees, the City Mayor, the County Commissioners,
and the Executive Director of the Port Authority. Any other amendment to the Agreement shall
be made in accordance with Section 6(h) hereof.
(b)

Services.

(i)
Law Enforcement.
The County Sheriff's office shall provide law
enforcement services to the Cooperative District.
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(ii)
Fire Department and Emergency Medical Services. The Township Fire
Department shall provide fire and emergency medical services to the Cooperative District.
(iii)
Snow Removal and Right-of-Way Mowing.
The Township shall
undertake or provide for the removal of snow and the mowing and care of greenspace along right
of-ways for the roads described on Exhibit C in the following approximate specifications: (i) for
the Phase l roadway, approximately 3,300 linear feet of roadway, including one 55' diameter cul
de-sac, (ii) for the Phase 2 roadway, approximately 850 linear feet of roadway, including one 55'
diameter cul-de-sac, and (iii) an approximately 640 linear foot future right-of-way between Hicks
Road and the cul-de-sac at the end of Phase 1.
(iv)
Developer and Marketing Agent.
The Port Authority shall act as the
developer (the Developer) and marketing agent for the Cooperative District with sole discretion
for the development of and marketing for the Project in the Cooperative District.
(c)
Initial Investment. Upon the Execution Date, each of the City, the County, and the
Port Authority shall make $1,500,000.00 available for immediate use at, on, and for the Initial
Infrastructure Improvements as defined in Section 2(c) (the Initial Investment). Each of the City,
the County and the Port Authority shall appropriate the outstanding balance of the Initial
Investment as necessary for each year in which an outstanding balance remains on each Initial
Investment.
Public Infrastructure Improvements. In its role as Developer, the Port Authority
(d)
agrees to complete or cause the completion of the road improvements, utility projects and other
infrastructure improvements necessitated by the Project as described on Exhibit B and as approved
by the City and County (the Initial Infrastructure Improvements). Funds from the Initial
Investment shall be used for such Initial Infrastructure Improvements. The Cooperative Parties
shall collaborate through the JEDD with respect to capital improvements in the event that the
Cooperative Parties determine that economic development in the JEDD District creates a demand
for additional public infrastructure improvements serving the JEDD District or the area
surrounding the JEDD District including, but not limited to, and solely upon the agreement of the
Cooperative Parties, paying costs of infrastructure improvements within the JEDD District or,
upon agreement of the Cooperative Paiiies, otherwise benefitting the JEDD District, which
infrastructure improvements may include improvements relating to roads (as further provided in
Section 2(e), water and sewer (except as provided in Section 2(f)), electric, natural gas, fiber, cable,
or any other capital improvements directly supporting non-residential development within the
JEDD District except as provided in Section 2(f) (collectively, the Future Infrastructure
Improvements).
(e)
Road Maintenance and Future Projects. The Cooperative Parties, including the Port
Authority in its role as the Developer, shall use funds from the Initial Investment for all road
installation, replacement, or pavement projects for so long as a balance remains outstanding on the
Initial Investment. At such time as there is no longer any balance of the Initial Investment
outstanding, the Contracting Parties shall reasonably and in good faith cooperate on the funding,
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development, construction, and reconstruction of all road replacement and pavement projects in
the Cooperative District.
The County shall maintain all utilities connecting to and located at
(f)
Utilities.
the Cooperative District; provided, that the Cooperative Parties shall construct and maintain all
water and sewer infrastructure on the Cooperative District with funds from the Initial Investment
for so long as a balance remains outstanding on the Initial Investment. At such time as there is no
longer any balance of the Initial Investment outstanding, the County shall maintain all water and
sewer infrastructure at the Cooperative District.
Section 3.

Terms of the JEDD.

(a)
JEDD Agreement. The City and the Township will take all steps necessary to create
and enter into a joint economic development district agreement (the JEDD Agreement) under
ORC Section 715.72 in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, which JEDD
Agreement shall contain the terms and provisions in this Section 3.
(b)
JEDD Board. The JEDD Agreement shall provide for the governance of the JEDD
by a board of directors (the Board) appointed as follows, pursuant to ORC Section 715.72(P)(2):
(i)
The
initial
City
member
of
the
Board
shall
be
.
Subject
to
any
applicable
restrictions
in
ORC
Section
715.72,
------------all future City members of the Board shall be appointed by City Council and shall serve at the
pleasure of City Council.
(ii)
The initial Township member of the Board shall be ________
Subject to any applicable restrictions in ORC Section 715.72, all future Township members of
the Board shall be appointed by a majority vote of the Board of Township Trustees and shall
serve at the pleasure of the Board of Township Trustees.
(iii) The third member of the Board shall be nominated by the Port Authority
and appointed by the unanimous vote of the initial City member and the initial Township member.
Subject to any applicable restrictions in ORC Section 715. 72, all future members of the Board
selected pursuant to this Section 3(b)(iii) shall be nominated to the Board by the Port Authority
and appointed by the unanimous vote of the City member and the Township member.
(iv)
When applicable, the representative of the business owner or owners
located in the JEDD District shall be appointed by mutual agreement of the City member and the
Township member, provided that if the City member and the Township member do not so appoint
a representative under this Section 3(b)(iv) within thirty (30) days after (A) the date that the first
business becomes operational in the JEDD District, (B) the end of a term of office for a business
owner representative, or (C) the occun-ence of any other vacancy in the office of business owner
representative, the chairperson of the Board shall notify the business with the greatest number of
employees working in the JEDD District that said business is entitled to appoint the business owner
representative, provided that any such appointment shall be made in writing by a duly authorized
officer of the appointing business and delivered to the chairp erson of the Board.
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(iv)
When applicable, the representative of the employees working in the JEDD
District shall be appointed by mutual agreement of the City member and the Township member,
provided that if the City member and the Township member do not so appoint a representative
under this Section 3(b)(iv) within thirty (30) days after (A) the date that the first business becomes
operational in the JEDD District, (B) the end of a term of office for a business owner
representative, or (C) the occurrence of any other vacancy in the office of business owner
representative, the chairperson of the Board shall notify the business with the greatest number of
employees working in the JEDD District that said business is entitled to appoint the employee
representative, provided that any such appointment shall be made in writing by a duly authorized
officer of the appointing business and delivered to the chairperson of the Board.
(c)

Power

(i)
Territory. The JEDD District initially will include the property within the
Cooperative Agreement. The Cooperative Parties will, from time to time and as necessary to
accommodate proposed business development, cooperate with respect to additions ofproperties to
the JEDD District 1.mder ORC Section 715.72(L), including where applicable and pennitted under
ORC Chapter 715 any properties located outside of the boundaries of the Cooperative District.
For the avoidance of doubt, this Agreement shall not be interpreted to prohibit the Cooperative
Parties from adding to the JEDD District a property outside of the Cooperative District or a
property that does not meet the requirements of Section 2(a) hereof.
(ii)
Tenn. The JEDD Agreement shall have a term of30 years from its effective
date and will automatically renew for one term of 30 years, unless either party acts to prevent such
renewal according to terms of the JEDD Agreement.
(iii) Income Tax. The JEDD Agreement will provide for an income tax on
income earned by persons working within the JEDD District and based on net profits of businesses
located in the JEDD District at a rate equal to the income tax levied in the City at the time of the
JEDD Agreement, subject to adjustment by the Board in the event ofany change in the City income
tax rate (the Total Revenues). The tax will be administered by the City, and distributed as follows:
(A) A reasonable amount of the total Revenues collected each year, as
determined by the JEDD Board, shall be paid to the JEDD Board for the administrative expenses
of the JEDD Board, after administrative expenses which may include reimbursement to the City
for the time of employees of the City in collecting, administering, enforcing, and auditing the
JEDD income tax applicable in the JEDD District in accordance with the JEDD Agreement,
outside legal or accounting fees, the cost of public notice and the like have been deducted by the
City; and
(B) The remaining amount of the Total Revenues collected each year after
the application of Section 3(c)(iii)(A) shall be divided as follows: (I) 30% shall be paid to the City;
(II) 30% shall be paid to Muskingum County; (III) 30% shall be paid to the Port Authority; and
(IV) 10% shall be paid to the Township.
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The foregoing allocations of income tax proceeds may be amended at any time by joint
written agreement of the Contracting Parties pursuant to Section 6(h) hereof. At such time as the
JEDD Board adopts the second resolution establishing an income tax in the JEDD District
following its first resolution establishing an income tax and every other year thereafter, the JEDD
Board will review the amount of its administrative expenses from the preceding two year period
and include such findings in its determination of its reasonable administrative expenses for the
succeeding resolutions establishing an income tax until such time as the Board makes a new
finding under the JEDD Agreement.
(d)
Authority. The JEDD Agreement will authorize the Board, among other things and
with the consent and agreement of the City, the Township and, where applicable, the County and
the Port Authority, to pay certain costs of such Future Infrastructure Improvements as may be
necessary to support growth within the JEDD District.
(e)
Incentives. Pursuant to ORC Section 715.72(U), throughout the term of the JEDD,
the City and the Township shall each obtain the express written consent of the other prior to
granting any tax exemption for any property in the JEDD District. The foregoing limitation shall
apply solely to tax exemptions set forth in ORC Section 715.72(U), which include exemptions
established pursuant to ORC Chapter 1728 and ORC Sections 3735.67, 5709.62, 5709.63, and
5709.632, as applicable.
(f)
Expenses. Should the JEDD Board incur legal or other administrative expenses
prior to the levying and collection of adequate Total Revenues, the Cooperative Parties shall
equally share said expenses.
Section 4.

Am1exation Moratorium.

This Agreement shall be considered an Amlexation Agreement pursuant to ORC Section
709.192. The City hereby agrees that, during the Initial Term or any Renewal Term of this
Agreement, it shall not annex any real property within the Cooperative District. To the extent not
prohibited by law, the City shall not accept any such annexation within the Cooperative District
during the Initial Term or any Renewal Tenn of this Agreement.
Section 5.

Port Authority Operational Funding.

For each year in which the Total Revenue exceeds $200,000.00, and if the Port Authority
has received more than $1,500,000.00 in aggregate for all years pursuant to the distribution of the
Total Revenue under Section 3(c)(iii) of this Agreement and the JEDD Agreement, the Port
Authority shall not seek operational funding from the City or the County for that year, if
reasonable.
Section 6.

Other.

(a)
Notices.
Any notice or consent required or permitted to be given by or on
behalf of either party to the other shall be given by mailing such notice or consent by United States
ce1tified or registered mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, or via a reputable express
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overnight mail service which provides proof of delivery addressed to the parties as set forth below
or at such other address as may be specified from time to time in writing delivered to the other
party. Notices shall be effective upon receipt or refusal, as the case may be.
If to the County:

County of Muskingum, Ohio
Attn: Board of County Commissioners
401 Main Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740)455-7100

If to the City:

City of Zanesville, Ohio
Attn: Mayor
401 Market Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740)617-4908

If to the Township:

Township of Perry, Muskingum County, Ohio
Attn: President
4625 Boggs Road
Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740)819-2344

If to the Port
Authority:

Zanesville-Muskingum County Port Authority
Attn: Executive Director
205 North Fifth Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone: (740)455-0742

(b)
Waivers. All waivers of the provision of this Agreement must be in writing and
signed by the appropriate authorities of the City, the County, the Port Authority, and the Township,
and all amendments hereto must be in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities of the City,
the County, the Port Authority, and the Township. No consent or waiver, express or implied, by
either party to or of any breach of any covenant, condition, or duty of the other party shall be
construed as a consent or waiver to or of any other breach of the same or any other covenant,
condition or duty to be observed by the other party.
(c)
Severability. In the event that any portions, sections or subsections of this
Agreement are rendered invalid by the decision of any court or by the enactment of any law,
ordinance or regulation, such provision of this Agreement will be deemed to have never been
included therein and the balance of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.
(d)
Authority. Each party to this Agreement hereby represents and wanants that it is
executing this Agreement with the full and proper authority and that the parties whose names
appear hereon are duly authorized and empowered to make and execute this Agreement and that
this Agreement is supported by consideration.
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(e)
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterpart, and in several
counterparts, each of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute but
one and the same Agreement.
(t)
Further Actions. The Cooperative Parties agree to execute such additional
documents, and take such further actions, as may reasonably be required to can-y out the provisions
and intent of this Agreement.
(g)
In General. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the event of any
default in or breach of this Agreement by either party hereto, or any successor to such party, such
party (or successor) shall, within sixty (60) days ofreceipt ofwritten notice from the other, proceed
to cure or remedy such default or breach. In case such action is not taken or not diligently pursued,
or the default or breach shall not be cured or remedied within a reasonable time, the aggrieved
party may institute such proceedings as may be necessary or desirable in its opinion to cure and
remedy such default or breach, including, but not limited to, proceedings to compel specific
performance by the party in default or breach of its obligations. All rights and remedies shall be
cumulative and shall not be construed to exclude any other remedies allowed at law or in equity.
(h)
Amendments and Modifications. Except as otherwise provided herein, this
Agreement may be amended by the Cooperative Parties only in writing and only following formal
approval of the amendment by both the Board of Trustees of the Township, the City Council of
the City, the Board of Commissioners of the County, and the Board of Directors of the Port
Authority (the Board of Directors).
(i)
Subject to Appropriation. The financial obligations of the City, the County, the
Port Authority, and the Township, as applicable, under this Agreement are expressly subject to
future ordinances or resolutions of the City Council, the Board of County Commissioners, the
Board of Directors, or the Township Trustees, respectively, appropriating and authorizing the
expenditure of such funds as are necessary to meet their respective financial obligations occurring
after the current fiscal year. Those obligations, as applicable, are also subject to the certification
of the City Auditor or his or her designee of the City, the County Auditor of the County, the Fiscal
Officer ofthe Port Authority, or the the Township Fiscal Officer under ORC Sections 5705.41 and
5705.44. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, however, the
financial obligations of the City, the County, the Port Authority, and the Township, respectively,
under this Agreement shall, to the extent funds are then available, be under the continuing
obligation to appropriate the amount necessary to pay such obligations as they become due.
[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Township have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first stated above.
CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO

By:

Mayor

Approved as to form and correctness:

Director of Law
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TOWNSHIP OF PERRY,
MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO
By:

By:

By:
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Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

[Signature Page to Cooperative Development Agreement]
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MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO
By:

By:

By:
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Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner
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ZANESVILLE-MUSKINGUM
COUNTY PORT AUTHORITY
By:
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Matt Abbott, Executive Director
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CITY'S FISCAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Fiscal Officer of the City of Zanesville, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
moneys required to meet the obligations of the City during the year 2020 under the foregoing
Agreement have been lawfully appropriated by the City Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio
for such purpose and are in the treasury of the City or in the process of collection to the credit of
an appropriate fund, free from any previous encumbrances. This Certificate is given in compliance
with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.41 and 5705.44.

Fiscal Officer
City of Zanesville, Ohio
Dated: [_], 2020
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TOWNSHIP'S FISCAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, Fiscal Officer of Perry Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, hereby
certifies that the moneys required to meet the obligations of the Township during the year 2020
under the foregoing Agreement have been lawfully appropriated by the Board of Trustees of Perry
Township, Muskingum County, Ohio for such purpose and are in the treasury of the Township or
in the process of collection to the credit of an appropriate fund, free from any previous
encumbrances. This Certificate is given in compliance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.41
and 5705.44.

Fiscal Officer
Perry Township, Muskingum County, Ohio
Dated: [_], 2020
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COUNTY'S FISCAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, County Auditor of Muskingum County, Ohio, hereby certifies that the
moneys required to meet the obligations of the County during the year 2020 under the foregoing
Agreement have been lawfully appropriated by the Board of Commissioners of Muskingum
County, Ohio for such purpose and are in the treasury of the County or in the process of collection
to the credit of an appropriate fund, free from any previous encumbrances. This Certificate is
given in compliance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.41 and 5705.44.

County Auditor
Muskingum County, Ohio
Dated: [__J, 2020
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PORT AUTHORITY'S FISCAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, fiscal officer of the Zanesville-Muskingum County Port Authority,
hereby certifies that the moneys required to meet the obligations of the Port Authority during the
year 2020 under the foregoing Agreement have been lawfully appropriated by the Board of
Directors of the Zanesville-Muskingum County Port Authority for such purpose and are in the
treasury of the Port Authority or in the process of collection to the credit of an appropriate fund,
free from any previous encumbrances. This Certificate is given in compliance with Ohio Revised
Code Sections 5705.41 and 5705.44.

Fiscal Officer
Zanesville-Muskingum County Port Authority
Dated: [__], 2020
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EXHIBIT A
MAP OF COOPERATIVE DISTRICT
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EXHIBIT B
INITIAL INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS
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EXHIBITC

FORM OF JEDD AGREEMENT
[See Attached.]
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EXHIBIT C
OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 715.72
EFFECTIVE AS OF DATE OF PETITION
(A) As used in this section:
(1) "Contracting parties" means one or more municipal corporations, one or more townships, and,
under division (D) of this section, one or more counties that have entered into a contract under this
section to create a joint economic development district.
(2) "District" means a joint economic development district created under this section.
(3) "Contract for utility services" means a contract under which a municipal corporation agrees to
provide to a township or another municipal corporation water, sewer, electric, or other utility
services necessary to the public health, safety, and welfare.
(4) "Business" means a sole proprietorship, a corporation for profit, a pass-through entity as
defined in section 5733.04 of the Revised Code, the federal government, the state, the state's
political subdivisions, a nonprofit organization, or a school district.
(5) "Owner" means a partner of a partnership, a member of a limited liability company, a majority
shareholder of an S corporation, a person with a majority ownership interest in a pass- through
entity, or any officer, employee, or agent with authority to make decisions legally binding upon a
business.
(6) "Record owner" means the person or persons in whose name a parcel is listed on the tax list or
exempt list compiled by the county auditor under section 319.28 or 5713.08 of the Revised Code.
(7) A business "operates within" a district if the net profits of the business or the income of
employees of the business would be subject to an income tax levied within the district.
(8) An employee is "employed within" a district if any portion of the employee's income would be
subject to an income tax levied within the district.
(9) "Mixed-use development" means a real estate project that tends to mitigate traffic and sprawl
by integrating some combination of retail, office, residential, hotel, recreation, and other functions
in a pedestrian-oriented environment that maximizes the use of available space by allowing
members of the community to live, work, and play in one architecturally expressive area with
multiple amenities.
(B) This section provides alternative procedures and requirements to those set forth in
sections 715.70 and 715.71 of the Revised Code for creating and operating a joint economic
development district. This section applies to municipal corporations and townships that are located
in the same county or in adjacent counties.
(C) One or more municipal corporations, one or more townships, and, under division (D) of this
section, one or more counties may enter into a contract pursuant to which they designate one or
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EXHIBIT C
more areas as a joint economic development district for the purpose of facilitating economic
development and redevelopment, to create or preserve jobs and employment opportunities, and to
improve the economic welfare of the people in this state and in the area of the contracting parties.
(1) Except as otherwise provided in division (C)(2) of this section, the territory of each of the
contracting patties shall be contiguous to the territory of at least one other contracting party, or
contiguous to the territory of a township, municipal corporation, or county that is contiguous to
another contracting party, even if the intervening township or municipal corporation is not a
contracting party.
(2) Contracting parties that have entered into a contract under section 715.70 or 715.71 of the
Revised Code creating a joint economic development district prior to November 15, 1995, may
enter into a contract under this section even if the tenitory of each of the contracting parties is not
contiguous to the territory of at least one other contracting party, or contiguous to the territory of
a township or municipal corporation that is contiguous to another contracting party as otherwise
required under division (C)(l ) of this section. The contract and district shall meet the requirements
of this section.
(D) If, on or after December 30. 2008. but on or before June 30, 2009, one or more municipal
corporations and one or more townships enter into a contract or amend an existing contract under
this section, one or more counties in which all of those municipal corporations or townships are
located also may enter into the contract as a contracting party or parties.
(E)
(1) The area or areas to be included in a joint economic development district shall meet all of the
following criteria:
(a) The area or areas shall be located within the territory of one or more of the contracting parties
and may consist of all of the territory of any or all of the contracting parties.
(b) No electors, except those residing in a mixed-use development, shall reside within the area or
areas on the effective date of the contract creating the district.
(c) The area or areas shall not include any parcel ofland owned in fee by or leased to a municipal
corporation or township, unless the municipal corporation or township is a contracting party or has
given its consent to have the parcel of land included in the district by the adoption of an ordinance
or resolution.
(2) The contracting parties may designate excluded parcels within the boundaries of the joint
economic development district. Excluded parcels are not part of the district and persons employed
or residing on such parcels shall not be subject to any income tax imposed within the district under
division (F)(5) of this section.
(F)
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EXHIBIT C
(1) The contract creating a joint economic development distiict shall provide for the amount or
nature ofthe contribution ofeach contracting party to the development and operation ofthe district
and may provide for the sharing of the costs ofthe operation of and improvements for the district.
The contributions may be in any form to which the contracting parties agree and may include, but
are not limited to. the provision of services, money, real or personal property, facilities, or
equipment.
(2) The contract may provide for the contracting parties to share revenue from taxes levied by one
or more ofthe contracting parties if those revenues may lawfully be applied to that purpose under
the legislation by which those taxes are levied.
(3) The contract shall include an economic development plan for the district that consists of a
schedule for the provision of new, expanded, or additional services, facilities, or improvements.
The contract may provide for expanded or additional capacity for or other enhancement ofexisting
services, facilities, or improvements.
(4) The contract shall enumerate the specific powers, duties, and functions ofthe board ofdirectors
ofthe district described under division (P) ofthis section and shall designate procedures consistent
with that division for appointing members to the board. The contract shall enumerate rules to
govern the board in carrying out its business under this section.
(5)
(a) The contract may grant to the board the power to adopt a resolution to levy an income tax
within the entire district or within portions of the district designated by the contract. The income
tax shall be used to carry out the economic development plan for the district or the portion of the
district in which the tax is levied and for any other lawful purpose of the contracting parties
pursuant to the contract, including the provision of utility services by one or more of the
contracting parties.
(b) An income tax levied under this section shall be based on both the income earned by persons
employed or residing within the district and the net profit of businesses operating within the
district.
Except as provided in this section, the income tax levied within the district is subject to Chapter
718. of the Revised Code, except that no vote shall be required. The rate of the income tax shall
be no higher than the highest rate being levied by a municipal corporation that is a contracting
party.
(c) If the board adopts a resolution to levy an income tax, it shall enter into an agreement with a
municipal corporation that is a contracting party to administer, collect, and enforce the income tax
on behalfofthe district.
(d) A resolution levying an income tax under this section shall require the contracting parties to
annually set aside a percentage, to be stated in the resolution, of the amount of the income tax
collected for the long-tenn maintenance of the district.
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(e) An income tax levied under this section shall apply in the district or the portion of the district
in which the contract authorizes an income tax throughout the term of the contract creating the
district. The tax shall not apply to any persons employed or residing on a parcel excluded from the
district under division (E)(2) of this section.
(6) If there is unincorporated territory in the district, the contract shall specify that restrictions on
annexation proceedings under division (R) of this section apply to such unincorporated territory.
The contract may prohibit proceedings under Chapter 709. of the Revised Code proposing the
annexation to. merger of. or consolidation with a municipal corporation that is a contracting party
of any unincorporated territory within a township that is a contracting party during the term of the
contract regardless of whether that territory is located within the district.
(7) The contract may designate property as a community entertainment district, or may be amended
to designate property as a community entertainment district, as prescribed in division (D) of
section 4301.80 of the Revised Code. A contract or amendment designating a community
entertainment district shall include all information and documentation described in divisions (B)(l)
to (6) of section 4301.80 of the Revised Code. The public notice required under division (I) of this
section shall specify that the contract designates a community entertainment district and describe
the location of that district. Except as provided in division (F) of section 4301.80 of the Revised
Code, an area designated as a community entertainment district under a joint economic
development district contract shall not lose its designation even if the contract is canceled or
terminated.
(G) The contract creating a joint economic development district shall continue in existence
throughout its term and shall be binding on the conh·acting parties and on any parties succeeding
to the contracting pmties, whether by annexation, merger, or consolidation. Except as provided in
division (H) of this section, the contract may be amended, renewed, or terminated with the approval
of the contracting parties or any parties succeeding to the contracting parties. If the contract is
amended to add or remove an area to or from an existing district, the amendment shall be adopted
in the manner prescribed under division (L) of this section.
(H) If two or more contracting parties previously have entered into a separate contract for utility
services, then amendment, renewal, or termination of the separate contract for utility services shall
not constitute any part of the consideration for the contract creating a joint economic development
district. A contract creating a joint economic development district shall be rebuttably presumed to
violate this division if it is entered into within two years prior or five years subsequent to the
amendment, renewal, or termination of a separate contract for utility services that two or more
contracting parties previously have entered into. The presumption stated in this division may be
rebutted by clear and convincing evidence of both of the following:
(1) That other substantial consideration existed to support the contract creating a joint economic
development district;
(2) That the contracting parties entered into the contract creating a joint economic development
district freely and without duress or coercion related to the amendment, renewal, or termination of
the separate contract for utility services.
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A conh·act creating a joint economic development district that violates this division is void and
unenforceable.
(I)
(1) Before the legislative authority of any of the contracting parties adopts an ordinance or
resolution approving a contract to create a district, the legislative authority of each of the
contracting parties shall hold a public hearing concerning the contract and district. Each legislative
authority shall provide at least thirty days' public notice of the time and place of the public hearing
in a newspaper of general circulation in the municipal corporation, township, or county, as
applicable. During the thirty-day period prior to the public hearing and until the date that an
ordinance or resolution is adopted under division (K) of this section to approve the joint economic
development district contract, all of the following documents shall be available for public
inspection in the office of the clerk of the legislative authority of a municipal corporation and
county that is a contracting party and in the office of the fiscal officer of a township that is a
contracting party:
(a) A copy of the contract creating the district, including the economic development plan for the
district and the schedule for the provision of new, expanded, or additional services, facilities, or
improvements described in division (F)(3) of this section;
(b) A description of the area or areas to be included in the district, including a map in sufficient
detail to denote the specific boundaries of the area or areas and to indicate any zoning restrictions
applicable to the area or areas, and the parcel number, provided for under section 319.28 of the
Revised Code, of any parcel located within the boundaiies of the joint economic development
district and excluded from the district under division (E)(2) of this section;
(c) If the contract authorizes the board of directors of the district to adopt a resolution to levy an
income tax within the district or within portions of the district, a schedule for the collection of the
tax.
(2) A public hearing held under this division shall allow for public comment and recommendations
on the contract and district. The contracting parties may include in the contract any of those
recommendations prior to approval of the contract.
(J) Before any of the contracting parties approves a contract under division (K) of this section, the
contracting parties shall circulate one or more petitions to record owners of real property located
within the proposed joint economic development district and owners of businesses operating
within the proposed district. The petitions shall state that all of the documents described in
divisions (1)(1)( a) to (c) of this section are available for public inspection in the office of the clerk
of the legislative authority of each municipal corporation and county that is a contracting party or
the office of the fiscal officer of each township that is a contracting party. The petitions shall
clearly indicate that, by signing the petition, the record owner or owner consents to the proposed
joint economic development district.
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A contracting party may send written notice of the petitions by certified mail with return receipt
requested to the last known mailing addresses of any or all of the record owners of real property
located within the proposed district or the owners of businesses operating within the proposed
district. The contracting parties shall equally share the costs of complying with this division.
(K)

(1) After the public hearings required under division (I) of this section have been held and the
petitions described in division (J) of this section have been signed by the majority of the record
owners of real property located within the proposed joint economic development district and by a
majority of the owners of businesses, if any, operating within the proposed district, each
contracting party may adopt an ordinance or resolution approving the contract to create a joint
economic development district. Not later than ten days after all of the contracting parties have
adopted ordinances or resolutions approving the district contract, each contracting party shall give
notice of the proposed district to all of the following:
(a) Each record owner of real property to be included in the district and in the territory of that
contracting party who did not sign the petitions described in division (J) of this section;
(b) An owner of each business operating within the district and in the territory of that contracting
party no owner of which signed the petitions described in division (J) of this section.
(2) Such notices shall be given by certified mail and shall specify that the property or business is
located within an area to be included in the district and that all of the documents described in
divisions (l)(l)(a) to (c) of this section are available for public inspection in the office of the clerk
of the legislative authority of each municipal corporation and county that is a contracting party or
the office of the fiscal officer of each township that is a contracting party. The contracting parties
shall equally share the costs of complying with division (K) of this section.
(L)
(1) The contracting parties may amend the joint economic development district contract to add any
area that was not originally included in the district if the area satisfies the criteria prescribed under
division (E) of this section. The contracting parties may also amend the district contract to remove
any area originally included in the district or exclude one or more parcels located within the district
pursuant to division (E)(2) of this section.

(2) An amendment adding an area to a district, removing an area from the district, or excluding
one or more parcels from the district may be approved only by a resolution or ordinance adopted
by each of the contracting parties. The contracting parties shall conduct public hearings on the
amendment and provide notice in the manner required under division (I) of this section for original
contracts. The contracting parties shall make available for public inspection a copy of the
amendment, a description of the area to be added, removed, or excluded to or from the district, and
a map of that area in sufficient detail to denote the specific boundaries of the area and to indicate
any zoning restrictions applicable to the area.
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(3) Before adopting a resolution or ordinance approving the addition of an area to the district, the
contracting parties shall circulate petitions to the record owners of real property located within the
proposed addition to the district and owners of businesses operating within the proposed addition
to the district in the same manner required under division (J) of this section for original contracts.
The contracting parties may notify such record owners of real property and owners of businesses
that the petitions are available for si gning in the same manner provided by that division. The
contracting parties shall equally share the costs of complying with this division.
(4) The contracting parties to a joint economic development district may vote to approve an
amendment to the district contract under this division after the public hearings required under
division (L)(2) of this section are completed and, if the amendment adds an area or areas to the
district, the petitions required under division (L)(3) of this section have been signed by the majority
of record owners of real property located within the area or areas added to the district and by a
majority of the owners of businesses, if any, operating within the proposed addition to the district.
(5) Not later than ten days after all of the contracting parties have adopted ordinances or resolutions
approving an amendment adding one or more areas to the district, each contracting party shall give
notice of the addition to all of the following:
(a) Each record owner of real property to be included in the addition to the district and in the
territory of that contracting party who did not sign the petitions described in division (L)(3) of this
section;
(b) An owner of each business operating within the addition to the district and in the territory of
that contracting party no owner of which signed the petitions described in division (L)(3) of this
section.
The contracting parties shall equally share the costs of complying with division (L)(S) of this
section.
(M)
(1) A board of township trustees that is a party to a contract creating a joint economic development
district may choose not to submit its resolution approving the contract to the electors of the
township if all of the following conditions are satisfied:
(a) The resolution has been approved by a unanimous vote of the members of the board of township
trustees or. if a county is one of the contracting parties under division (D) of this section, the
resolution has been approved by a majority vote of the members of the board of township trustees;
(b) The contracting parties have circulated petitions as required under division (J) of this section
and obtained the signatures required under division (L) of this section;
(c) The territory to be included in the proposed district is zoned in a manner appropriate to the
function of the district.

12529900v4

C-7

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2020-70
EXHIBIT C
(2) If the board of township trustees has not invoked its authority under division (M)(l) of this
section, the board, at least ninety days before the date of the election, shall file its resolution
approving the district contract with the board of elections for submission to the electors of the
township for approval at the next succeeding general, primary, or special election.
(3) Any contract creating a district in which a board of township trnstees is a party shall provide
that the contract is not effective before the thirty-first day after its approval, including approval by
the electors of the township if required by this section.
(4) If the board of township trustees invokes its authority under division (M)(l) of this section and
does not submit the district contract to the electors for approval, the resolution of the board of
township trustees approving the contract is subject to a referendum of the electors of the township
when requested through a petition. When signed by ten per cent of the number of electors in the
township who voted for the office of governor at the most recent general election, a referendum
petition asking that the resolution be submitted to the electors of the township may be presented
to the board of township trustees. Such a petition shall be presented within thirty days after the
board of township trustees adopts the resolution approving the district contract. The board of
township trustees shall, not later than four p.m. of the tenth day after receipt of the petition, certify
the text of the resolution to the board of elections. The board of elections shall submit the resolution
to the electors of the township for their approval or rejection at the next general, primary, or special
election occurring at least ninety days after certification of the resolution.
(N) The ballot respecting a resolution to create a district or a referendum of such a resolution shall
be in the following form:
"Shall the resolution of the board of township trustees approving the contract with............... (here
insert name of every other contracting party) for the creation of a joint economic development
district be approved?
FOR THE RESOLUTION AND CONTRACT
AGAINST THE RESOLUTION AND CONTRACT
If a majority of the electors of the township voting on the issue vote for the resolution and contract,
the resolution shall become effective immediately and the contract shall go into effect on the thirty
first day after the election or thereafter in accordance with terms of the contract.
(0) Upon the creation of a district under this section, one of the contracting parties shall file a copy
of each of the following documents with the director of development services:
(1) All of the documents described in divisions (I)(l)(a) to (c) of this section;
(2) Certified copies of the ordinances and resolutions of the contracting parties relating to the
contract and district;
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(3) Documentation from each contracting party that the public hearings required by division (I) of
this section have been held, the date ofthe hearings, and evidence that notice ofthe hearings was
published as required by that division;
(4) A copy ofthe signed petitions required under divisions (J) and (K) ofthis section.
(P) A board ofdirectors shall govern each district created under this section.
(1) If there are businesses operating and persons employed within the district, the board shall be
composed ofthe following members:
(a) One member representing the municipal corporations that are contracting parties;
(b) One member representing the townships that are contracting paiiies;
(c) One member representing the owners ofbusinesses operating within the district;
(d) One member representing the persons employed within the district;
(e) One member representing the counties that are contracting parties, or. ifno contracting party
is a county, one member selected by the members described in divisions (P)(l)(a) to (d) of this
section.
The members ofthe board shall be appointed as provided in the district contract. Ofthe members
initially appointed to the board, the member described in division (P)(l)(a) of this section shall
serve a term of one year; the member described in division (P)(l)(b) of this section shall serve a
tenn oftwo years; the member described in division (P)(l)(c) ofthis section shall serve a term of
three years; and the members described in divisions (P)(l)(d) and (e) of this section shall serve
terms offour years. Thereafter, terms for each member shall be for four years, each term ending
on the same day ofthe same month ofthe year as did the term that it succeeds. A member may be
reappointed to the board, but no member shall serve more than two consecutive terms on the board.
The member described in division (P)(l)(e) ofthis section shall serve as chairperson ofthe board
described under division (P)(l) ofthis section.
(2) Ifthere are no businesses operating or persons employed within the district, the board shall be
composed ofthe following members:
(a) One member representing the municipal corporations that are contracting parties;
(b) One member representing the townships that are contracting parties;
(c) One member representing the counties that are contracting parties, or ifno contracting party is
a county, one member selected by the members described in divisions (P)(2)(a) and (b) of this
section.
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The members of the board shall be appointed as provided in the district contract. Of the members
initially appointed to the board, the member described in division (P)(2)(a) of this section shall
serve a term of one year; the member described in division (P)(2)(b) of this section shall serve a
term of two years; and the member described in division (P)(2)(c) of this section shall serve a tenn
of three years. Thereafter, terms for each member shall be for four years, each term ending on the
same day of the same month of the year as did the term that it succeeds. A member may be
reappointed to the board, but no member shall serve more than two consecutive terms on the board.
The member described in division (P)(2)(c) of this section shall serve as chairperson of a board
described under division (P)(2) of this section.
(3) A board described under division (P)(l) or (2) of this section has no powers except as described
in this section and in the contract creating the district.
(4) Membership on the board of directors of a joint economic development district created under
this section is not the holding of a public office or employment within the meaning of any section
of the Revised Code prohibiting the holding of other public office or employment. Membership
on such a board is not a direct or indirect interest in a contract or expenditure of money by a
municipal corporation, township, county, or other political subdivision with which a member may
be affiliated. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no member of a board of
directors of a joint economic development district shall forfeit or be disqualified from holding any
public office or employment by reason of membership on the board.
(5) The board of directors of a joint economic development district is a public body for the
purposes of section 121.22 of the Revised Code. Chapter 2744. of the Revised Code applies to
such a board and the district.
(Q)
(1) On or before the date occurring six months after the effective date of the district contract, an
owner of a business operating within the district may, on behalf of the business and its employees,
file a complaint with the court of common pleas of the county in which the majority of the territory
of the district is located requesting exemption from any income tax imposed by the board of
directors of the district under division (F)(5) of this section if all of the following apply:
(a) The business operated within an unincorporated area of the district before the effective date of
the district contract;
(b) No owner of the business signed a petition described in division (J) of this section;
(c) Neither the business nor its employees has derived or will derive any material benefit from the
new, expanded, or additional services, facilities, or improvements described in the economic
development plan for the district, or the material benefit that has, or will be. derived is negligible
in comparison to the income tax revenue generated from the net profits of the business and the
income of employees of the business.
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The legislative authority of each contracting party shall be made a party to the proceedings and the
business owner filing the complaint shall serve notice of the complaint by certified mail to each
such contracting party. The court shall not accept any complaint filed more than six months after
the effective date of the district contract.
(2) Any or all of the contracting parties may submit a written answer to the complaint submitted
under division (Q)(l) of this section to the court with.in thirty days after notice of the complaint
was served upon them. Such a contracting party shall submit to the court, along with the answer,
documentation sufficient to prove that the contracting party sent copies of the answer to the owner
of the business who filed the complaint.
(3) The court shall review each complaint submitted by a business owner under division (0) (1) of
this section and each answer submitted by a contracting paiiy under division (Q)(2) of this section.
The court may make a determination on the record and the evidence thus submitted, or it may
conduct a hearing and request the presence of the business owner and the contracting parties to
present evidence relevant to the complaint. The court shall make a determination on the complaint
not sooner than thirty days but not later than sixty days after the complaint is filed by the business
owner. The court may make a detennination more than sixty days after the complaint is filed if the
business owner and all contracting parties to the district consent.
(4) The court shall grant the exemption requested in the complaint if all of the criteria described in
divisions (Q)(l)(a) to (c) of this section are met.
(5) If all the criteria described in divisions (Q)(l)(a) to (c) of this section are not met, the court shall
deny the complaint and the exemption.
(6) The court shall send notice of the determination with respect to the complaint to the owner of
the business and each contracting party. If the court grants the exemption, the net profits of the
business from operations within the district and the income of its employees from employment
within the district are exempt from any income tax imposed by the board of directors of the district.
If the court denies the exemption, the net profits of the business and the income of its employees
shall be taxed according to the tenns of the district contract and any taxes, penalties, and interest
accrued before the date of the court's determination shall be paid in full. In addition, no owner of
the business may submit another complaint under division (Q)(I) of this section for the same
district contract. The court's determination on a complaint filed under division (0) of this section
is final.
(7) Chapter 2506. of the Revised Code does not apply to the proceedings described in division (0)
of this section.
(R)
(1) No proceeding pursuant to Chapter 709. of the Revised Code that proposes the annexation to,
merger of, or consolidation with a municipal corporation of any wuncorporated territory within a
joint economic development district may be commenced at any time between the effective date of
the contract creating the district and the date the contract expires, terminates, or is otherwise
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rendered unenforceable. This division does not apply if each board of township trustees whose
tenitory is included within the district and whose tenitory is proposed to be annexed, merged, or
consolidated adopts a resolution consenting to the c01mnencement of the proceeding. Each such
board of township trustees shall file a copy of the resolution with the clerk of the legislative
authority of each county within which a contracting party is located.
(2) The contract creating a joint economic development district may prohibit any annexation
proceeding by a contracting municipal corporation of any unincorporated territory within the
district or zone beyond the period described in division (R)(l) of this section.
(3) No contracting party is divested or relieved of its rights or obligations under the contract
creating a joint economic development district because of annexation, merger, or consolidation.
(S)Contracting parties may enter into agreements pursuant to the contract creating a joint
economic development district with respect to the substance and administration of zoning and
other land use regulations, building codes, permanent public improvements, and other regulatory
and proprietary matters determined to be for a public purpose. No contract, however, shall exempt
the territory within the district from the procedures of land use regulation applicable pursuant to
municipal corporation, township, and county regulations, including, but not limited to. zoning
procedures.
(T) The powers granted under this section are in addition to and not in the derogation of all other
powers possessed by or granted to municipal corporations, townships, and counties pursuant to
law.
(1) When exercising a power or performing a function or duty under a contract entered into under
this section, a municipal corporation may exercise all the powers of a municipal corporation, and
may perform all the functions and duties of a municipal corporation, within the district, pursuant
to and to the extent consistent with the contract.
(2) When exercising a power or performing a function or duty under a contract entered into under
division (D) of this section, a county may exercise all of the powers of a county, and may perform
all the functions and duties of a county, within the district pursuant to and to the extent consistent
with the contract.
(3) When exercising a power or performing a function or duty under a contract entered into under
this section, a township may exercise all the powers of a township, and may perform all the
functions and duties of a township, within the district, pursuant to and to the extent consistent with
the contract.
(U) No political subdivision shall grant any tax exemption under Chapter 1728. or
section 3735.67. 5709.62. 5709.63. or 5709.632 of the Revised Code on any property located
within the district without the consent of all the contracting parties. The prohibition against
granting a tax exemption under this section does not apply to any exemption filed, pending, or
approved before the effective date of the contract entered into under this section.
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Amended by 131st General Assembly File No. TBD, HB 182, §1, eff. 9/13/2016.
Effective Date: 03-22-1999; 2008 SB129 12-30-2008
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Ways and Means Committee
Ann Gildow - Chairperson

ORDINANCE NO. 2020- 71
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE 19-96
WHEREAS, on or about September 9, 2019, Zanesville City Council passed Ordinance 19-96,
titled "An Ordinance authorizing the proper City official to enter into an agreement with Compucorp as
the internet service provider for Zanesville Downtown Fiberoptic Network"; and
WHEREAS, the agreement between the City and Compucorp was not executed before the end
of 2019; and
WHEREAS, R.C. Section 731.48 states, "Contract Restrictions: The legislative authority of a
municipal corporation shall not enter into any contract which is not to go into full operation during the
term for which all the members of such legislative authority are elected"; and
WHEREAS, because the Compucorp agreement was not executed in 2019, the agreement
became null and void; and
WHEREAS, the City has determined, in light of the recent COVID-related emergency, to utilize
the grant funding originally slated for Compucorp for more urgent community health-related purposes;
and
WHEREAS, in an effort to effectively organize the Ordinances of the City of Zanesville, it was
determined that Ordinance 19-96 should be repealed.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Zanesville City Ordinance 19-96, titled "An Ordinance authorizing the proper City
official to enter into an agreement with Compucorp as the internet service provider for Zanesville
Downtown Fiberoptic Network", is hereby repealed in its entirety.
SECTION TWO: It is found that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the
adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations
of this Council that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public in compliance with
all legal requirements, including §121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the Rules of this Council.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.
PASSED: ________, 2020
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ATTEST: ___ ______
Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

APPROVED:

This legislation approved as to form:

______,2020

Don Mason, Mayor

Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-75
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 18-92, CREATION OF A DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT
WHEREAS, The City of Zanesville ("the City") approved Ordinance No. 18-92 using the authority granted in Ohio Revised Code
Sections 5709.45 through 5709.47 to create a Downtown Redevelopment District (DRD), the "Zane-Zenith ORD," and to declare
to be a public purpose any infrastructure improvements made that are necessary for the development of such a ORD, thereby
exempting seventy percent (70%) of improvements to such parcels from real property taxation for established time periods;
and
WHEREAS, the historic building of the Zane-Zenith DRD is the Zane-Zenith building, a locally designated historic property
established by Ordinance 17-117, which is located at 11 North 4th Street, Zanesville, Ohio, Parcel Number 81-64-03-18-000; and
WHEREAS, the City filed necessary documentation with the Muskingum County Auditor's for the Zane-Zenith ORD to be
certified to and by the Ohio Tax Commissioner's Office; and
WHEREAS, the DRD is still pending certification from the Ohio Tax Commissioner's Office; and
WHERAS, the City and historic building owner have determined the benefits of the DRD will not greatly enhance downtown
redevelopment efforts; and
WHEREAS, the historic building owner has requested the pending ORD be withdrawn from consideration for certification.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION 1:

Ordinance No. 18-92 be repealed in its entirety.

SECTION 2:

The Community Development Director is authorized and directed to provide a certified copy of this ordinance
to the Muskingum County Auditor's Office and the Ohio Tax Commissioner's Office to demonstrate the City's
desire that the request for certification be withdrawn.

SECTION 3:

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: ____________�2020

ATTEST: ______________
SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED:._____ _________, 2020

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED AS TO FORM

Donald L. Mason,
Mayor

�-cLAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-76
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT
TERMINATING AN AMENDED HISTORIC PROPERTY INVESTMENT AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION
WITH THE ZANE-ZENITH DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
WHEREAS, Zanesville City Council previously authorized Ordinance 17-117, which Ordinance certified the property
located at 11 North 4th Street, Zanesville, Parcel Number 81-64-03-18-000, as a locally designated historic property
(the "Historic Property" or "Zane-Zenith Building"}; and
WHEREAS, Zanesville City Council previously authorized Ordinance 18-92 that engaged the authority granted to
the City of Zanesville ("the City"} pursuant to Ohio Revised Code ("ORC") Sections 5709.45 through 5709.47 to
establish a Downtown Redevelopment District (the "Zane-Zenith ORD") in an area located in Downtown Zanesville
and encompassing a 9.65 acre area enclosed by a continuous boundary in which a historic building will be
rehabilitated; and
WHEREAS, the City filed necessary documentation with the Muskingum County Auditor's for the Zane-Zenith ORD
to be certified to and by the Ohio Tax Commissioner's Office; and
WHEREAS, the ORD is still pending certification from the Ohio Tax Commissioner's Office; and
WHEREAS, Ordinance 18-93, previously approved by the Zanesville City Council, authorized the proper city official
to enter in to a Historic Property Investment Agreement with the Zane-Zenith Company for rehabilitation of the
Historic Property; and
WHEREAS, Zanesville City Council previously authorized Ordinance No. 2020-13 authorizing the proper city official
to enter into an amended Historic Property Investment Agreement with the Zane-Zenith Company for rehabilitation
of the Historic Property; and
WHEREAS, the City and historic building owner have determined the benefits of the DRD will not greatly enhance
downtown redevelopment efforts; and
WHEREAS, the historic building owner has requested the pending DRD be withdrawn from consideration for
certification; and
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION 1:

The Proper City Official of the City of Zanesville is hereby authorized to enter into An Agreement
with the Zane-Zenith Company to terminate the amended Historic Property Investment
Agreement.

SECTION 2:

A certified copy of this ordinance will be provided to the Muskingum County Auditor's Office and
Ohio Tax Commissioner's Office.

SECTION 3:

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: __________ ___�2020

ATTEST: ____________ __
SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

Ordinance No. 2020-76

APPROVED:. ____________, 2020

Donald L. Mason,
Mayor

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED AS TO FORM

��

CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING OFFICER

I, the undersigned, hereby certify, that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the
Council of the City of Zanesville at the Council Meeting held on the __ day in the month of _____�
2020, and that I am a duly authorized to execute this certificate.

Signature
Sue Culbertson, Clerk of Council

